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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Statements including
words such as “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “plan”, “desire”, “project”, “estimate”, “intend”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “would”, “may”, “strategy”,
“potential”, “opportunity”, “outlook”, “scenario”, “guidance”, and similar expressions are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve,
among other things, expectations, projections, and assumptions about future financial and operating results, objectives (including objectives related to
environmental, social, and governance matters), business outlook, priorities, sales growth, shareholder value, capital expenditures, cash flows, the housing
market, the home improvement industry, demand for products and services, share repurchases, Lowe’s strategic initiatives, including those relating to
acquisitions and dispositions and the impact of such transactions on our strategic and operational plans and financial results. Such statements involve risks and
uncertainties and we can give no assurance that they will prove to be correct. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such
statements.

A wide variety of potential risks, uncertainties, and other factors could materially affect our ability to achieve the results either expressed or implied by these
forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, changes in general economic conditions, such as volatility and/or lack of liquidity from time to time in
U.S. and world financial markets and the consequent reduced availability and/or higher cost of borrowing to Lowe’s and its customers, slower rates of growth
in real disposable personal income that could affect the rate of growth in consumer spending, inflation and its impacts on discretionary spending and on our
costs, shortages, and other disruptions in the labor supply, interest rate and currency fluctuations, home price appreciation or decreasing housing turnover, age
of housing stock, the availability of consumer credit and of mortgage financing, trade policy changes or additional tariffs, outbreaks of pandemics, fluctuations
in fuel and energy costs, inflation or deflation of commodity prices, natural disasters, armed conflicts, acts of both domestic and international terrorism, and
other factors that can negatively affect our customers.

Investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties, risks and potential events including, but not limited to, those
described in “Item 1A - Risk Factors” and “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and as may be updated from time to time in our quarterly reports on Form
10-Q or other subsequent filings with the SEC. All such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we do not undertake any
obligation to update these statements other than as required by law.
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Part I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Unaudited)
In Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data

  Three Months Ended
  May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Current Earnings Amount % Sales Amount % Sales
Net sales $ 22,347  100.00 % $ 23,659  100.00 %
Cost of sales 14,820  66.32  15,609  65.97 
Gross margin 7,527  33.68  8,050  34.03 
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 3,824  17.12  4,303  18.19 
Depreciation and amortization 415  1.85  445  1.88 
Operating income 3,288  14.71  3,302  13.96 
Interest – net 349  1.56  243  1.03 
Pre-tax earnings 2,939  13.15  3,059  12.93 
Income tax provision 679  3.04  726  3.07 
Net earnings $ 2,260  10.11 % $ 2,333  9.86 %

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 596  660 
Basic earnings per common share $ 3.78  $ 3.52 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 597  662 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 3.77  $ 3.51 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
In Millions, Except Percentage Data

  Three Months Ended
  May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
  Amount % Sales Amount % Sales
Net earnings $ 2,260  10.11 % $ 2,333  9.86 %
Foreign currency translation adjustments – net of tax —  —  (17) (0.07)
Cash flow hedges – net of tax (4) (0.02) 219  0.93 
Other 1  0.01  (2) (0.01)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income (3) (0.01) 200  0.85 
Comprehensive income $ 2,257  10.10 % $ 2,533  10.71 %

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
In Millions, Except Par Value Data

May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,950  $ 3,414  $ 1,348 
Short-term investments 423  368  384 
Merchandise inventory – net 19,522  20,239  18,532 
Other current assets 1,023  1,590  1,178 
Total current assets 23,918  25,611  21,442 
Property, less accumulated depreciation 17,402  18,890  17,567 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 3,504  4,131  3,518 
Long-term investments 103  76  121 
Deferred income taxes – net 150  33  250 
Other assets 840  984  810 
Total assets $ 45,917  $ 49,725  $ 43,708 

Liabilities and shareholders' deficit
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $ 72  $ —  $ 499 
Current maturities of long-term debt 589  121  585 
Current operating lease liabilities 525  639  522 
Accounts payable 11,885  13,831  10,524 
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 766  1,190  1,109 
Deferred revenue 1,645  2,094  1,603 
Income taxes payable 526  741  1,181 
Other current liabilities 3,202  3,215  3,488 
Total current liabilities 19,210  21,831  19,511 
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 35,863  28,776  32,876 
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities 3,479  4,061  3,512 
Deferred revenue – Lowe's protection plans 1,206  1,137  1,201 
Other liabilities 869  797  862 
Total liabilities 60,627  56,602  57,962 
Shareholders' deficit:
Preferred stock, $5 par value: Authorized – 5.0 million shares; Issued and outstanding –
none —  —  — 
Common stock, $0.50 par value: Authorized – 5.6 billion shares; Issued and outstanding –
592 million, 652 million, and 601 million shares, respectively 296  326  301 
Accumulated deficit (15,310) (7,367) (14,862)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 304  164  307 
Total shareholders' deficit (14,710) (6,877) (14,254)
Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit $ 45,917  $ 49,725  $ 43,708 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Deficit (Unaudited)
In Millions

Three Months Ended May 5, 2023

Common Stock Capital in Excess
of Par Value

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Income TotalShares Amount
Balance February 3, 2023 601  $ 301  $ —  $ (14,862) $ 307  $ (14,254)
Net earnings —  —  —  2,260  —  2,260 
Other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —  (3) (3)
Cash dividends declared, $1.05 per share —  —  —  (624) —  (624)
Share-based payment expense —  —  55  —  —  55 
Repurchases of common stock (11) (6) (59) (2,084) —  (2,149)
Issuance of common stock under share-based

payment plans 2  1  4  —  —  5 
Balance May 5, 2023 592  $ 296  $ —  $ (15,310) $ 304  $ (14,710)

Three Months Ended April 29, 2022

Common Stock Capital in Excess
of Par Value

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
(Loss)/Income TotalShares Amount

Balance January 28, 2022 670  $ 335  $ —  $ (5,115) $ (36) $ (4,816)
Net earnings —  —  —  2,333  —  2,333 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  200  200 
Cash dividends declared, $0.80 per share —  —  —  (524) —  (524)
Share-based payment expense —  —  46  —  —  46 
Repurchases of common stock (19) (9) (47) (4,061) —  (4,117)
Issuance of common stock under share-based

payment plans 1  —  1  —  —  1 
Balance April 29, 2022 652  $ 326  $ —  $ (7,367) $ 164  $ (6,877)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
In Millions

Three Months Ended
May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings $ 2,260  $ 2,333 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 465  503 
Noncash lease expense 108  135 
Deferred income taxes 102  59 
Asset impairment and loss on property – net 11  4 
Gain on sale of business (67) — 
Share-based payment expense 59  50 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Merchandise inventory – net (990) (2,646)
Other operating assets 157  (212)
Accounts payable 1,361  2,479 
Deferred revenue 48  191 
Other operating liabilities (1,408) 81 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,106  2,977 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (450) (109)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments 412  132 
Capital expenditures (380) (343)
Proceeds from sale of property and other long-term assets 8  10 
Proceeds from sale of business 123  — 
Other – net (17) — 
Net cash used in investing activities (304) (310)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in commercial paper (427) — 
Net proceeds from issuance of debt 2,983  4,964 
Repayment of debt (22) (773)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under share-based payment plans 5  1 
Cash dividend payments (633) (537)
Repurchases of common stock (2,106) (4,037)
Other – net —  (4)
Net cash used in financing activities (200) (386)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,602  2,281 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,348  1,133 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 2,950  $ 3,414 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements (unaudited) and notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements (unaudited) are
presented in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and do not include all the disclosures normally required in
annual consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
condensed consolidated financial statements (unaudited), in the opinion of management, contain all normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly
the consolidated balance sheets as of May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022, and the statements of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders’ deficit, and cash
flows for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022. The February 3, 2023, consolidated balance sheet was derived from the audited financial
statements.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements (unaudited) should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto included in the Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the Company) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2023 (the Annual
Report). The financial results for the interim periods may not be indicative of the financial results for the entire fiscal year.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
Recent accounting pronouncements pending adoption not discussed in this Form 10-Q or in the 2022 Form 10-K are either not applicable to the Company or
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Note 2: Revenue

Net sales consists primarily of revenue, net of sales tax, associated with contracts with customers for the sale of goods and services in amounts that reflect
consideration the Company is entitled to in exchange for those goods and services.

The following table presents the Company’s sources of revenue:

(In millions)

Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Products $ 21,572  $ 22,884 
Services 528  536 
Other 247  239 
Net sales $ 22,347  $ 23,659 

A provision for anticipated merchandise returns is provided through a reduction of sales and cost of sales in the period that the related sales are recorded.  The
merchandise return reserve is presented on a gross basis, with a separate asset and liability included in the consolidated balance sheets. The balances and
classification within the consolidated balance sheets for anticipated sales returns and the associated right of return assets are as follows:

(In millions) Classification
May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Anticipated sales returns Other current liabilities $ 318  $ 363  $ 234 
Right of return assets Other current assets 185  218  139 

Deferred revenue - retail and stored-value cards

Retail deferred revenue consists of amounts received for which customers have not yet taken possession of the merchandise or for which installation has not yet
been completed. The majority of revenue for goods and services is recognized in the quarter following revenue deferral. Stored-value cards deferred revenue
includes outstanding stored-value cards such as gift cards and
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returned merchandise credits that have not yet been redeemed. Deferred revenue for retail and stored-value cards are as follows:

(In millions)
May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Retail deferred revenue $ 1,063  $ 1,521  $ 933 
Stored-value cards deferred revenue 582  573  670 
Deferred revenue $ 1,645  $ 2,094  $ 1,603 

Deferred revenue - Lowe’s protection plans

The Company defers revenues for its separately-priced long-term extended protection plan contracts (Lowe’s protection plans) and recognizes revenue on a
straight-line basis over the respective contract term. Expenses for claims are recognized in cost of sales when incurred.

(In millions)
May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Deferred revenue - Lowe’s protection plans $ 1,206  $ 1,137  $ 1,201 

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Lowe’s protection plans deferred revenue recognized into sales $ 136  $ 127 
Lowe’s protection plans claim expenses 53  45 

Disaggregation of Revenues

The following table presents the Company’s net sales disaggregated by merchandise division:
Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
(In millions) Net Sales % Net Sales %
Home Décor $ 8,243  36.9  % $ 8,697  36.8  %
Hardlines 6,811  30.5  6,695  28.3 
Building Products 6,789  30.4  7,770  32.8 
Other 504  2.2  497  2.1 
Total $ 22,347  100.0 % $ 23,659  100.0 %

Note: Merchandise division net sales for the prior period have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
Home Décor includes the following product categories: Appliances, Décor, Flooring, Kitchens & Bath, and Paint
Hardlines includes the following product categories: Hardware, Lawn & Garden, Seasonal & Outdoor Living, and Tools
Building Products includes the following product categories: Building Materials, Electrical, Lumber, Millwork, and Rough Plumbing

The following table presents the Company’s net sales disaggregated by geographical area:

(In millions)

Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
United States $ 22,347  $ 22,426 
Canada —  1,233 
Net Sales $ 22,347  $ 23,659 

The Canadian retail business was sold on February 3, 2023.

1

2

3

1    

2    

3    

1

1 
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Note 3: Restricted Investments

Short-term and long-term investments include restricted balances pledged as collateral primarily for the Lowe’s protection plans program and are as follows:
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022 February 3, 2023
Short-term restricted investments $ 423  $ 368  $ 384 
Long-term restricted investments 103  76  100 
Total restricted investments $ 526  $ 444  $ 484 

Note 4: Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements establishes a three-level hierarchy, which encourages an entity to maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of the hierarchy are defined as follows:

• Level 1 - inputs to the valuation techniques that are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
• Level 2 - inputs to the valuation techniques that are other than quoted prices but are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or

indirectly
• Level 3 - inputs to the valuation techniques that are unobservable for the assets or liabilities

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of May 5, 2023, April 29, 2022, and
February 3, 2023:

Fair Value Measurements at

(In millions) Classification
Measurement

Level
May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Available-for-sale debt securities:
U.S. Treasury securities Short-term investments Level 1 $ 143  $ 176  $ 157 
Money market funds Short-term investments Level 1 108  135  43 
Corporate debt securities Short-term investments Level 2 72  15  78 
Certificates of deposit Short-term investments Level 1 62  4  40 
Commercial paper Short-term investments Level 2 38  —  52 
Foreign government debt securities Short-term investments Level 2 —  28  14 
Municipal obligations Short-term investments Level 2 —  10  — 
U.S. Treasury securities Long-term investments Level 1 92  31  86 
Corporate debt securities Long-term investments Level 2 9  43  12 
Municipal obligations Long-term investments Level 2 2  2  2 

Derivative instruments:
Forward interest rate swaps Other current assets Level 2 $ —  $ 261  $ 251 
Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps Other liabilities Level 2 69  65  88 

Other financial instruments:
Contingent consideration Long-term investments Level 3 $ —  $ —  $ 21 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2, or 3 during any of the periods presented.

When available, quoted prices were used to determine fair value.  When quoted prices in active markets were available, financial assets were classified within
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  When quoted prices in active markets were not available, fair values for financial assets and liabilities classified within
Level 2 were determined using pricing models, and the
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inputs to those pricing models were based on observable market inputs.  The inputs to the pricing models were typically benchmark yields, reported trades,
broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads and benchmark securities, among others.

The performance-based contingent consideration is related to the fiscal 2022 sale of the Canadian retail business and is classified as a Level 3 long-term
investment. The Company determined the initial fair value of contingent consideration as of February 3, 2023, based on an income approach using an option
pricing model, calculated using significant unobservable inputs such as total equity value, volatility, and expected term. Subsequent measurements of fair value
of the contingent consideration are based on an income approach, which requires certain assumptions considering operating performance of the business and a
risk-adjusted discount rate. Changes in the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized as gain or loss included within selling, general
and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of earnings.

The rollforward of the fair value of contingent consideration for the three months ended May 5, 2023, is as follows:
Three Months Ended

(In millions) May 5, 2023
Beginning balance $ 21 

Change in fair value 102 
Proceeds received (123)

Ending balance $ — 

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

During the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022, the Company had no material measurements of assets and liabilities at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis subsequent to their initial recognition.

Other Fair Value Disclosures

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term
borrowings, accounts payable, and long-term debt and are reflected in the financial statements at cost. With the exception of long-term debt, cost approximates
fair value for these items due to their short-term nature. As further described in Note 7, certain long-term debt is associated with a fair value hedge and the
changes in fair value of the hedged debt is included in the carrying value of long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets. The fair values of the
Company’s unsecured notes were estimated using quoted market prices. The fair values of the Company’s mortgage notes were estimated using discounted
cash flow analyses, based on the future cash outflows associated with these arrangements and discounted using the applicable incremental borrowing rate.

Carrying amounts and the related estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt, excluding finance lease obligations, are as follows:

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022 February 3, 2023

(In millions)
Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Unsecured notes (Level 1) $ 35,898  $ 32,525  $ 28,224  $ 26,095  $ 32,897  $ 30,190 
Mortgage notes (Level 2) 2  2  4  5  2  2 
Long-term debt (excluding finance lease obligations) $ 35,900  $ 32,527  $ 28,228  $ 26,100  $ 32,899  $ 30,192 

Note 5: Accounts Payable

The Company has agreements with third parties to provide supplier finance programs which facilitate participating suppliers’ ability to finance payment
obligations from the Company with designated third-party financial institutions. Participating suppliers may, at their sole discretion, make offers to finance one
or more payment obligations of the Company prior to their scheduled due dates at a discounted price to participating financial institutions. The Company’s
outstanding payment obligations that suppliers financed to participating financial institutions, which are included in accounts payable on the
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consolidated balance sheets, are as follows:
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022 February 3, 2023
Financed payment obligations $ 1,894  $ 2,493  $ 2,257 

Note 6: Debt

Commercial Paper Program

The Company’s commercial paper program is supported by the $2.0 billion five-year unsecured revolving credit agreement entered into in March 2020, and as
amended, (2020 Credit Agreement) and the $2.0 billion five-year unsecured third amended and restated credit agreement entered into in December 2021, and
as amended (Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement).  The amounts available to be drawn under the 2020 Credit Agreement and the Third Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement are reduced by the amount of borrowings under the commercial paper program. Outstanding borrowings under the Company’s
commercial paper program were $72 million, with a weighted average interest rate of 5.75% as of May 5, 2023, and $499 million, with a weighted average
interest rate of 4.78%, as of February 3, 2023. There were no outstanding borrowings under the 2020 Credit Agreement or the Third Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement as of May 5, 2023, or February 3, 2023. There were no outstanding borrowings under the Company’s commercial paper program, the 2020
Credit Agreement, or the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement as of April 29, 2022. Total combined availability under the 2020 Credit Agreement
and the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was $3.9 billion as of May 5, 2023.

Long-Term Debt

On March 30, 2023, the Company issued $3.0 billion of unsecured fixed rate notes (March 2023 Notes) as follows:

Principal Amount
(in millions) Maturity Date Interest Rate

Discount
(in millions)

$ 1,000  April 2026 4.800% $ 3 
$ 1,000  July 2033 5.150% $ 4 
$ 500  July 2053 5.750% $ 5 
$ 500  April 2063 5.850% $ 5 

Interest on the March 2023 Notes with April maturity dates is payable semiannually in arrears in April and October of each year until maturity. Interest on the
March 2023 Notes with July maturity dates is payable semiannually in arrears in January and July of each year until maturity.

The indenture governing the March 2023 Notes contains a provision that allows the Company to redeem these notes at any time, in whole or in part, at
specified redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to, but excluding, the date of redemption. The indenture also contains a provision that
allows the holders of the notes to require the Company to repurchase all or any part of their notes if a change of control triggering event occurs. If elected under
the change of control provisions, the repurchase of the notes will occur at a purchase price of 101% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, on such notes up to, but excluding, the date of purchase. The indentures governing the March 2023 Notes does not limit the aggregate principal amount of
debt securities that the Company may issue and does not require the Company to maintain specified financial ratios or levels of net worth or liquidity.

Note 7: Derivative Instruments

The Company utilizes forward interest rate swap agreements to hedge its exposure to changes in benchmark interest rates on forecasted debt issuances. The
Company also utilizes fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreements as fair value hedges on certain debt. The notional amounts for the Company’s material
derivative instruments are as follows:

(In millions)
May 5,
2023

April 29,
2022

February 3,
2023

Cash flow hedges:
Forward interest rate swap agreement notional amounts $ —  $ 1,760  $ 1,290 

Fair value hedges:
Fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreement notional amounts $ 850  $ 850  $ 850 
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See Note 4 for the gross fair values of the Company’s outstanding derivative financial instruments and corresponding fair value classifications. The cash flows
related to settlement of the Company’s hedging derivative financial instruments are classified in the consolidated statements of cash flows based on the nature
of the underlying hedged items.

The Company accounts for the forward interest rate swap contracts as cash flow hedges, thus the effective portion of gains and losses resulting from changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of tax effects, in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and is amortized to
interest expense over the term of the respective debt. In connection with the issuance of our March 2023 Notes, we settled forward interest rate swap contracts
with a combined notional amount of $2.0 billion and received a payment of $247 million. The (loss)/gain from forward interest rate swap agreements, both
settled and outstanding, designated as cash flow hedges recorded in other comprehensive (loss)/income and net earnings for the three months ended May 5,
2023, and April 29, 2022, including its line item in the financial statements, is as follows:

(In millions)
Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Cash flow hedges – net of tax benefit/(expense) of $2 million and ($73) million, respectively $ (4) $ 218 

Net earnings:
Interest – net $ 3  $ (1)

The Company accounts for the fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreements as fair value hedges using the shortcut method of accounting under which the
hedges are assumed to be perfectly effective. Thus, the change in fair value of the derivative instruments offsets the change in fair value on the hedged debt,
and there is no net impact in the consolidated statements of earnings from the fair value of the derivatives.

Note 8: Shareholders’ Deficit

The Company has a share repurchase program that is executed through purchases made from time to time either in the open market, which may be made under
pre-set trading plans meeting the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or through private off-market transactions. Shares
purchased under the repurchase program are returned to authorized and unissued status. Any excess of cost over par value is charged to additional paid-in
capital to the extent that a balance is present. Once additional paid-in capital is fully depleted, remaining excess of cost over par value is charged to
accumulated deficit. As of May 5, 2023, the Company had $18.7 billion remaining in its share repurchase program.

During the three months ended May 5, 2023, the Company entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase (ASR) agreement with a third-party financial
institution to repurchase a total of 3.8 million shares of the Company’s common stock for $750 million. The terms of the ASR agreement entered into during
the three months ended May 5, 2023, are as follows (in millions):

Agreement Execution
Date

Agreement Settlement
Date

ASR
Agreement Amount

Initial Shares Delivered
at Inception

Additional Shares
Delivered at Settlement Total Shares Delivered

Q1 2023 Q1 2023 $ 750  3.1  0.7  3.8

In addition, the Company repurchased shares of its common stock through the open market as follows:
Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023
(In millions) Shares Cost
Open market share repurchases 6.1 $ 1,269 

The Company also withholds shares from employees to satisfy either the exercise price of stock options exercised or the statutory withholding tax liability
resulting from the vesting of share-based awards.
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Total shares repurchased for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022, were as follows:
Three Months Ended

May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
(In millions) Shares Cost Shares Cost
Share repurchase program 9.9  $ 2,019  18.6  $ 4,001 
Shares withheld from employees 0.7  130  0.6  116 
Total share repurchases 10.6  $ 2,149  19.2  $ 4,117 

Beginning January 1, 2023, share repurchases in excess of issuances are subject to a 1% excise tax, which is included as part of the cost basis of the shares
acquired.

Note 9: Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates basic and diluted earnings per common share using the two-class method. The following table reconciles earnings per common share
for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022:

Three Months Ended
(In millions, except per share data) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Basic earnings per common share:
Net earnings $ 2,260  $ 2,333 
Less: Net earnings allocable to participating securities (6) (8)
Net earnings allocable to common shares, basic $ 2,254  $ 2,325 
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 596  660 
Basic earnings per common share $ 3.78  $ 3.52 
Diluted earnings per common share:
Net earnings $ 2,260  $ 2,333 
Less: Net earnings allocable to participating securities (6) (8)
Net earnings allocable to common shares, diluted $ 2,254  $ 2,325 
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 596  660 
Dilutive effect of non-participating share-based awards 1  2 
Weighted-average common shares, as adjusted 597  662 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 3.77  $ 3.51 
Anti-dilutive securities excluded from diluted weighted-average common shares 0.6  0.4 

Note 10: Supplemental Disclosure

Net interest expense is comprised of the following:
Three Months Ended

(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Long-term debt $ 343  $ 230 
Short-term borrowings 14  1 
Lease obligations 6  7 
Interest income (16) (2)
Interest capitalized (1) (1)
Interest on tax uncertainties —  3 
Other 3  5 
Interest – net $ 349  $ 243 

1
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Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Three Months Ended

(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Cash paid for interest, net of amount capitalized $ 383  $ 375 
Cash paid for income taxes – net 1,234  57 
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Leased assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities $ 4  $ 2 
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 98  174 
Cash dividends declared but not paid 624  524 

Excludes $519 million of leases signed but not yet commenced as of May 5, 2023.

1

1 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lowe’s Companies, Inc.

Results of Review of Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of May 5, 2023, and
April 29, 2022, the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the fiscal three-month periods
ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “interim financial information”). Based on our reviews, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying interim financial information for it to be in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
balance sheet of the Company as of February 3, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders’ deficit, and
cash flows for the fiscal year then ended (not presented herein); and in our report dated March 27, 2023, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of February 3, 2023, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

Basis for Review Results

This interim financial information is the responsibility of the Company’s management. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our review in accordance with standards of the PCAOB. A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical
procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with the standards of the PCAOB, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
June 1, 2023
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Item 2.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

This discussion and analysis summarizes the significant factors affecting our consolidated operating results, liquidity and capital resources during the three
months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
to the consolidated financial statements that are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2023 (the Annual Report), as
well as the consolidated financial statements (unaudited) and notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited) contained in this report. Unless
otherwise specified, all comparisons made are to the corresponding period of fiscal 2022. In fiscal 2023, there is a one week shift as a result of the 53rd week in
fiscal 2022. For the purposes of the following discussion, comparable sales, comparable customer transactions, and comparable average ticket are based upon
the comparable 13-week period from fiscal 2022. This discussion and analysis is presented in four sections:

• Executive Overview
• Operations
• Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
• Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Net sales in the first quarter of fiscal 2023 declined 5.5% to $22.3 billion compared to net sales of $23.7 billion in the first quarter of fiscal 2022. Prior year
sales included $1.2 billion generated by our Canadian retail business, which was sold in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022. Comparable sales for the first quarter
of fiscal 2023 decreased 4.3%, consisting of a 4.0% decrease in comparable customer transactions and a comparable average ticket decline of 0.3%. Net
earnings in the first quarter of fiscal 2023 were $2.3 billion, which represents a decrease of 3.1% compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2022. Diluted earnings
per common share were $3.77 in the first quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to $3.51 in the first quarter of fiscal 2022. Included in the first quarter of 2023 results
is a pre-tax income of $63 million associated with the fiscal 2022 sale of the Canadian retail business, which increased diluted earnings per share by $0.10.
Excluding the impact of this item, adjusted diluted earnings per common share increased 4.6% to $3.67 in the first quarter of fiscal 2023 (see the non-GAAP
financial measures discussion).

For the first three months of fiscal 2023, cash flows from operating activities were approximately $2.1 billion, with $380 million used for capital expenditures.
Continuing to deliver on our commitment to return excess cash to shareholders, we repurchased $2.1 billion of common stock and paid $633 million in
dividends during the three months ended May 5, 2023.

The decline in first quarter fiscal 2023 comparable sales was 4.3%, driven by lumber commodity deflation, unfavorable weather, and macroeconomic
uncertainty affecting Do-It-Yourself (DIY) consumer discretionary spending. Despite lumber deflation, we experienced slightly positive comparable sales
growth with our Pro customers, which reflects the success of our MVPs Pro Rewards and Partnership Program  initiatives. In addition, we continue to
enhance our online shopping experience and fulfillment capabilities. Supported by these initiatives, we saw positive comparable growth online this quarter.

Our focus to gain efficiencies through continuous improvement is the foundation of our Perpetual Productivity Improvement (PPI) initiatives, which give us the
agility to adapt and manage expenses through periods of unpredictable demand. One such effort underway is the modernization of our technology across our
stores. This includes replacing our legacy self-checkout systems with our proprietary self-checkout registers.

We are continuing the roll-out of our supply chain market-based delivery model for big and bulky product with 12 geographic areas converted as of the end of
the quarter. We expect all regions to be converted to the market-based delivery model by the end of fiscal 2023.

We view spring as a first half event, and we are prepared to re-engage our customers with spring projects as warmer weather arrives across the country. We
believe our Total Home strategy has positioned us to grow market share and deliver sustainable shareholder value, while navigating near-term market
uncertainty.

TM
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OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of each line item of the consolidated statements of earnings (unaudited), as well as the
percentage change in dollar amounts from the prior period. This table should be read in conjunction with the following discussion and analysis and the
consolidated financial statements (unaudited), including the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).

Three Months Ended

Basis Point
Increase/(Decrease) in

Percentage of Net Sales
from Prior Period

Percentage
Increase/(Decrease) in
Dollar Amounts from

Prior Period
May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022 2023 vs. 2022 2023 vs. 2022

Net sales 100.00 % 100.00 % N/A (5.5)%
Gross margin 33.68  34.03  (35) (6.5)
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 17.12  18.19  (107) (11.1)
Depreciation and amortization 1.85  1.88  (3) (6.8)
Operating income 14.71  13.96  75 (0.4)
Interest – net 1.56  1.03  53 43.2 
Pre-tax earnings 13.15  12.93  22 (3.9)
Income tax provision 3.04  3.07  (3) (6.5)
Net earnings 10.11 % 9.86 % 25 (3.1)%
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The following table sets forth key metrics utilized by management in assessing business performance. This table should be read in conjunction with the
following discussion and analysis and the consolidated financial statements (unaudited), including the related notes to the consolidated financial statements
(unaudited).

Three Months Ended
Other Metrics May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Comparable sales decrease (4.3)% (4.0)%
Total customer transactions (in millions) 214  226 
Average ticket $ 104.44  $ 104.52 
At end of period:
Number of stores 1,738  1,971 
Sales floor square feet (in millions) 195  208 
Average store size selling square feet (in thousands) 112  106 
Net earnings to average debt and shareholders’
  deficit 24.2 % 30.8 %
Return on invested capital 28.0 % 33.8 %

    A comparable location is defined as a retail location that has been open longer than 13 months. A location that is identified for relocation is no longer
considered comparable in the month of its relocation. The relocated location must then remain open longer than 13 months to be considered comparable. A
location we decide to close is no longer considered comparable as of the beginning of the month in which we announce its closing. Operating locations
which are sold are included in comparable sales until the date of sale. Comparable sales are presented on a transacted basis when tender is accepted from a
customer. Comparable sales include online sales, which impacted first quarter fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022 comparable sales by approximately 60 basis
points and -5 basis points, respectively. The comparable store sales calculation included in the preceding table was calculated using comparable 13-week
periods.

    Average ticket is defined as net sales divided by the total number of customer transactions.
    Average store size selling square feet is defined as sales floor square feet divided by the number of stores open at the end of the period. The average Lowe’s-

branded home improvement store has approximately 112,000 square feet of retail selling space.
    Return on invested capital is calculated using a non-GAAP financial measure. Net earnings to average debt and shareholders’ deficit is the most

comparable GAAP ratio. As of May 5, 2023, return on invested capital was negatively impacted 725 basis points as a result of the sale of the Canadian retail
business. See below for additional information and reconciliations of non-GAAP measures.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share

Adjusted diluted earnings per share is considered a non-GAAP financial measure. The Company believes this non-GAAP financial measure provides useful
insight for analysts and investors in evaluating what management considers the Company’s core operating performance. Adjusted diluted earnings per share
excludes the impact of certain items, further described below, not contemplated in the Company’s business outlook for fiscal 2023. There were no non-GAAP
adjustments to diluted earnings per share for the three months ended April 29, 2022.

Fiscal 2023 Impacts
• In the first quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company recognized pre-tax income of $63 million consisting of a realized gain on the contingent consideration

and estimated adjustments to the selling price associated with the fiscal 2022 sale of the Canadian retail business (Canadian retail business
transaction).

Adjusted diluted earnings per share should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful indicator of, the Company’s diluted earnings per common
share as prepared in accordance with GAAP. The Company’s methods of determining non-GAAP financial measures may differ from the method used by other
companies and may not be comparable.

1
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Three Months Ended
May 5, 2023

Pre-Tax
Earnings Tax Net Earnings

Diluted earnings per share, as reported $ 3.77 
Non-GAAP adjustments – per share impacts
Canadian retail business transaction (0.10) —  (0.10)

Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 3.67 

Represents the corresponding tax benefit or expense specifically related to the item excluded from adjusted diluted earnings per share.

Return on Invested Capital

Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) is calculated using a non-GAAP financial measure. Management believes ROIC is a meaningful metric for analysts and
investors as a measure of how effectively the Company is using capital to generate financial returns. Although ROIC is a common financial metric, numerous
methods exist for calculating ROIC.  Accordingly, the method used by our management may differ from the methods used by other companies.  We encourage
you to understand the methods used by another company to calculate ROIC before comparing its ROIC to ours.

We define ROIC as the rolling 12 months’ lease adjusted net operating profit after tax (Lease adjusted NOPAT) divided by the average of current year and prior
year ending debt and shareholders’ deficit. Lease adjusted NOPAT is a non-GAAP financial measure, and net earnings is considered to be the most comparable
GAAP financial measure. The calculation of ROIC, together with a reconciliation of net earnings to Lease adjusted NOPAT, is as follows:

For the Periods Ended
(In millions, except percentage data) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Calculation of Return on Invested Capital
Numerator

Net Earnings $ 6,364  $ 8,453 
Plus:

Interest expense – net 1,228  918 
Operating lease interest 160  158 
Provision for income taxes 2,553  2,780 

Lease adjusted net operating profit 10,305  12,309 
Less:

Income tax adjustment 2,950  3,046 
Lease adjusted net operating profit after tax $ 7,355  $ 9,263 

Denominator
Average debt and shareholders’ deficit $ 26,269  $ 27,442 

Net earnings to average debt and shareholders’ deficit 24.2 % 30.8 %
Return on invested capital 28.0 % 33.8 %

Income tax adjustment is defined as lease adjusted net operating profit multiplied by the effective tax rate, which was 28.6% and 24.7% for the periods
ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022, respectively.
Average debt and shareholders’ deficit is defined as average current year and prior year ending debt, including current maturities, short-term borrowings,
and operating lease liabilities, plus the average current year and prior year ending total shareholders’ deficit.

For the period ended May 5, 2023, return on invested capital was negatively impacted 725 basis points as a result of the sale of the Canadian retail business.

1
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Results of Operations

Net Sales – Net sales for the first quarter of fiscal 2023 decreased 5.5% to $22.3 billion. The decrease in total sales was primarily driven by the sale of the
Canadian retail business in fiscal 2022, which generated $1.2 billion of net sales in the first quarter of 2022. This was partially offset by the timing shift in our
fiscal calendar in which the first quarter of fiscal 2023 (a 52-week year) included one less week of winter and one more week of spring than fiscal 2022 (a 53-
week year). The 53rd week shift contributed approximately $735 million to net sales for the first quarter of fiscal 2023. Comparable sales declined 4.3% over
the same period, consisting of a 4.0% decrease in comparable customer transactions and a 0.3% decrease in comparable average ticket.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2023, we experienced comparable sales increases in five of 14 product categories, led by Building Materials, Rough Plumbing,
and Paint. Growth in these categories reflects broad-based strength with the Pro customer, demonstrating improvement from our investments in our Pro product
and service offerings, including our enhanced assortment. Although our lowest comparable sales were in Lumber due to significant commodity deflation, the
highest unit sales increases were also in this category, demonstrating the continued strength of the Pro customer.

Gross Margin – For the first quarter of fiscal 2023, gross margin decreased 35 basis points as a percentage of sales. The gross margin contraction for the
quarter is driven by product rate pressure due primarily to lower product cost inflation in the current year and higher costs associated with the expansion of our
supply chain network, partially offset by favorable product mix.

SG&A – For the first quarter of fiscal 2023, SG&A expense leveraged 107 basis points as a percentage of sales compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2022. This
includes the benefit of a one-time legal settlement, the gain on contingent consideration associated with the fiscal 2022 sale of the Canadian retail business, and
our ongoing PPI initiatives to offset the pressures from lower sales and wage investments.

Depreciation and Amortization – Depreciation and amortization leveraged three basis points for the first quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the prior year.

Interest – Net – Interest expense for the first quarter of fiscal 2023 deleveraged 53 basis points as a percentage of sales, primarily due to interest expense related
to the issuance of unsecured notes in September 2022 and March 2023, partially offset by increased interest income and scheduled payoff of notes at maturity.

Income Tax Provision – Our effective income tax rates were 23.1% and 23.7% for the three months ended May 5, 2023 and April 29, 2022, respectively.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources of Liquidity

Cash flows from operations, combined with our continued access to capital markets on both a short-term and long-term basis, as needed, remain adequate to
fund our operations, make strategic investments to support long-term growth, and return excess cash to shareholders in the form of dividends and share
repurchases. We believe these sources of liquidity will continue to support our business for the next twelve months. As of May 5, 2023, we held $3.0 billion of
cash and cash equivalents, as well as $3.9 billion in undrawn capacity on our revolving credit facilities.

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,106  $ 2,977 

Cash flows from operating activities continued to provide the primary source of our liquidity.  The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities for the
three months ended May 5, 2023, compared to the three months ended April 29, 2022, was driven primarily by timing of income tax payments, partially offset
by changes in working capital. Other operating liabilities decreased operating cash flows by $1.4 billion during the first three months of fiscal 2023. This
decrease is primarily driven by the payment of our third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 estimated federal tax payments that were deferred under the income
tax relief announced by the Internal Revenue Service for businesses located in states impacted by Hurricane Ian. Inventory decreased operating cash flows by
approximately $990 million, while accounts payable increased operating cash
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flows by $1.4 billion for the first three months of 2023. We typically build our inventory in anticipation for spring as we have historically recognized our
highest volume sales during the second fiscal quarter.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Net cash used in investing activities $ (304) $ (310)

Net cash used in investing activities primarily consists of transactions related to capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures

Our capital expenditures generally consist of investments in our strategic initiatives to enhance our ability to serve customers, improve existing stores, and
support expansion plans. The following table provides our capital expenditures for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022:

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Existing store investments $ 307  $ 252 
Strategic initiatives 67  46 
New stores and corporate facilities 6  45 
Total capital expenditures $ 380  $ 343 

Includes merchandising resets, facility repairs, replacements of IT and store equipment, among other specific efforts.
Represents investments related to our strategic focus areas aimed at improving customers’ experience and driving improved performance in the near and
long term.
Represents expenditures primarily related to land purchases, buildings, and personal property for new store and corporate facilities projects.

For fiscal 2023, our guidance for capital expenditures is up to $2.0 billion.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Net cash used in financing activities $ (200) $ (386)

Net cash used in financing activities primarily consists of transactions related to our long-term debt, share repurchases, and cash dividend payments.

Total Debt

During the three months ended May 5, 2023, we issued $3.0 billion of unsecured notes, the proceeds of which were designated for general corporate purposes.

Our commercial paper program is supported by the 2020 Credit Agreement and the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. The amounts available to
be drawn under the 2020 Credit Agreement and the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement is reduced by the amount of borrowings under our
commercial paper program. Outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper program were $72 million as of May 5, 2023. There were no outstanding
borrowings under our 2020 Credit Agreement or the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement as of May 5, 2023. Total combined availability under the
2020 Credit Agreement and the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement as of May 5, 2023 was $3.9 billion.

The 2020 Credit Agreement and the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contain customary representations, warranties, and covenants. We were in
compliance with those covenants at May 5, 2023.
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The following table includes additional information related to our debt for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022:

Three Months Ended
(In millions) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Net proceeds from issuance of debt $ 2,983  $ 4,964 
Repayment of debt (22) (773)
Net change in commercial paper (427) — 
Maximum commercial paper outstanding at any period 2,195  1,361 
Short-term borrowings outstanding at quarter-end 72  — 
Weighted-average interest rate of short-term borrowings outstanding 5.75 % — %

Share Repurchases

We have an ongoing share repurchase program, authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors, that is executed through purchases made from time to time
either in the open market or through private off-market transactions. We also withhold shares from employees to satisfy tax withholding liabilities. Shares
repurchased are retired and returned to authorized and unissued status. The following table provides, on a settlement date basis, the total number of shares
repurchased, average price paid per share, and the total cash used to repurchase shares for the three months ended May 5, 2023, and April 29, 2022:

Three Months Ended
(In millions, except per share data) May 5, 2023 April 29, 2022
Total amount paid for share repurchases $ 2,106  $ 4,037 
Total number of shares repurchased 10.5  18.7 
Average price paid per share $ 201.41  $ 215.32 

As of May 5, 2023, we had $18.7 billion remaining available under our share repurchase program with no expiration date.

Dividends

Dividends are paid in the quarter immediately following the quarter in which they are declared. Dividends paid per share increased from $0.80 per share for the
three months ended April 29, 2022, to $1.05 per share for the three months ended May 5, 2023.

Capital Resources

We expect to continue to have access to the capital markets on both a short-term and long-term basis when needed for liquidity purposes by issuing commercial
paper or new long-term debt. The availability and the borrowing costs of these funds could be adversely affected, however, by a downgrade of our debt ratings
or a deterioration of certain financial ratios.  The table below reflects our debt ratings by Standard & Poor’s (S&P) and Moody’s as of June 1, 2023, which we
are disclosing to enhance understanding of our sources of liquidity and the effect of our ratings on our cost of funds.  Our debt ratings have enabled, and should
continue to enable, us to refinance our debt as it becomes due at favorable rates in capital markets. Our commercial paper and senior debt ratings may be
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Debt Ratings S&P Moody’s
Commercial Paper A-2 P-2
Senior Debt BBB+ Baa1
Senior Debt Outlook Stable Stable

There are no provisions in any agreements that would require early cash settlement of existing debt or leases as a result of a downgrade in our debt rating or a
decrease in our stock price.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements presented in the Annual Report. Our critical accounting
policies and estimates are described in “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the Annual
Report. Our significant and critical accounting policies and estimates have not changed significantly since the filing of the Annual Report.

Item 3. - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is exposed to certain market risks, including changes in interest rates and commodity prices. The Company’s market risks have not changed
materially from those disclosed in the Annual Report for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2023.

Item 4. - Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures,” (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act)). Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of May 5, 2023, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective for the purpose of ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the
Company files or submits under the Exchange Act with the SEC (1) is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms, and (2) is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company is undergoing a multi-year technology transformation which includes updating and modernizing our merchandise selling system, as well as
certain accounting and finance systems. These updates are expected to continue for the next few years, and management will continue to evaluate the design
and implementation of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as the transformation continues. No change in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended May 5, 2023, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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Part II – OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. - Legal Proceedings

In addition to the matter referenced in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2023, the Company is from time to time a party to
various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. With respect to such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, the
Company records reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company does not believe
that any of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flows. The Company maintains liability insurance for certain risks that are subject to certain self-insurance limits.

Item 1A. - Risk Factors

There have been no material changes in the Company’s risk factors from those disclosed in Part I, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report filed with the
SEC on March 27, 2023.

Item 2. - Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds    

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information with respect to purchases of the Company’s common stock on a trade date basis made during the three months ended
May 5, 2023:

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased 
Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of

Publicly Announced Plans
or Programs 

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet Be

Purchased Under the Plans
or Programs 

February 4, 2023 - March 3, 2023 3,075,592  $ 197.52  3,075,346  $ 19,977,480,160 
March 4, 2023 - April 7, 2023 2,659,061  199.41  2,007,678  19,577,481,132 
April 8, 2023 - May 5, 2023 4,860,663  204.23  4,860,272  18,727,456,212 
As of May 5, 2023 10,595,316  $ 201.07  9,943,296  $ 18,727,456,212 

The total number of shares repurchased includes shares withheld from employees to satisfy either the exercise price of stock options or the statutory
withholding tax liability upon the vesting of share-based awards.
On December 7, 2022, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized an additional $15.0 billion of share repurchases, in addition to the
$13.0 billion of share repurchases authorized by the Board of Directors in December 2021, with no expiration.
Beginning January 1, 2023, the Company’s share repurchases in excess of issuances are subject to a 1% excise tax enacted by the Inflation Reduction Act.
Any excise tax incurred on share repurchases is recognized as part of the cost basis of the shares acquired in the consolidated statements of shareholders’
deficit.
In March 2023, the Company entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase (ASR) agreement with a third-party financial institution to repurchase the
Company’s common stock. At inception, pursuant to the agreement, the Company paid $750 million to the financial institution and received an initial
delivery of 3.1 million shares. In May, prior to the end of the first quarter, the Company finalized the transaction and received an additional 0.7 million
shares. The average price paid per share in settlement of the ASR agreement included in the table above was determined with reference to the volume-
weighted average price of the Company’s common stock over the term of the ASR agreement. See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements included
herein for additional information regarding share repurchases.

1 2 2, 3

4

4

1

2

3

4
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Item 6. - Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date

3.1 Restated Charter of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 10-Q 001-07898 3.1 September 1, 2009

3.2 Bylaws of Lowe’s Companies, Inc., as amended and restated
November 11, 2022.

8-K 001-07898 3.1 November 16, 2022

4.1 Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 30, 2023,
between Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and U.S. Bank Trust Company,
National Association (as successor in interest to U.S. Bank National
Association as successor trustee).

8-K 001-07898 4.2 March 30, 2023

10.1 Form of Lowes Companies, Inc. 2023 Non-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement.* ‡

10.2 Form of Lowes Companies, Inc. 2023 Performance Share Unit Award
Agreement.* ‡

10.3 Form of Lowes Companies, Inc. 2023 Restricted Stock Award
Agreement.* ‡

15.1 Deloitte & Touche LLP Letter re Unaudited Interim Financial
Information.‡

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-
14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.‡

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-
14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.‡

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.†

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.†

99.1 Lowe’s 401(k) Plan, as amended and restated, effective as of January
1, 2023 (filed to include this amendment as an exhibit to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No.033-29772).‡

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document – the XBRL Instance Document does
not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document.‡

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.‡

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.‡

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.‡

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.‡

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.‡
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104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL document
and included in Exhibit 101).‡

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
‡ Filed herewith.
† Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC.
(Registrant)

June 1, 2023 By: /s/ Dan C. Griggs, Jr.
Date Dan C. Griggs, Jr.

Senior Vice President, Tax and Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC.
2006 Long Term Incentive Plan

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

THIS NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), between LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC., a North Carolina
corporation (the “Company”), and the individual (“Participant”) identified in the accompanying Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Non-
Qualified Stock Option Agreement (the “Notice”), is made pursuant and subject to the Notice and the provisions of the Company’s 2006 Long
Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan”), a copy of which has been made available to Participant, and any applicable
recoupment or “clawback” policies of the Company, as in effect from time to time. All terms used herein that are defined in the Plan have the
same meaning given them in the Plan.

1. Terms and Conditions. This Option is subject to the terms and conditions of the Notice and the following terms and conditions:

(a) Date of Grant and Expiration Date. The Date of Grant of this Option and the Expiration Date of the Option are as
specified in the Notice.

(b) Exercise of Option. Except as provided in paragraphs 2, 3, 4 and 5 of this Agreement, this Option shall be exercisable as
prescribed in the Notice. Except to the extent otherwise provided in paragraphs 2 and 3, once this Option has become exercisable in
accordance with the preceding sentence, it shall continue to be exercisable until the earlier of the termination of Participant’s rights
hereunder pursuant to paragraph 4 or 5, or until the Expiration Date. A partial exercise of this Option shall not affect Participant’s right to
exercise this Option with respect to the remaining shares, subject to the conditions of the Notice, the Plan and this Agreement.

(c) Method of Exercise and Payment for Shares. Unless the exercise is executed through the Company’s designated
brokerage firm for on-line options processing (currently E*Trade), this Option shall be exercised by written notice substantially in the
form of Exhibit “A” hereto delivered to the Company or its designee by mail or overnight delivery service, in person, or via other means
authorized by the Company. Any notice delivered to the Company shall be addressed to the attention of the Director - Stock Plan
Administration at the Company’s principal office in Mooresville, North Carolina. Such notice shall be accompanied by payment in full
of the Option exercise price, and applicable withholding taxes, in cash or cash equivalent acceptable to the Administrator, or by the
surrender of shares of Common Stock (by attestation of ownership or actual delivery of one or more share certificates) with an aggregate
Fair Market Value (determined as of the business day preceding the exercise date) which, together with any cash or cash equivalent paid
by Participant, is not less than the Option exercise price, and applicable withholding taxes, for the number of shares of Common Stock
for which the Option is being exercised. To the extent permitted under Regulation T of the Federal Reserve Board, and subject to
applicable securities laws and the Company’s adoption of such program in connection with the Plan, if Participant is subject to the
reporting and other provisions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Option may be exercised through a
broker in a so-called “cashless exercise” whereby the broker sells the Option shares and delivers cash sales proceeds to the Company in
payment of the Option exercise price, and applicable withholding taxes. In such case, the written notice of exercise will be accompanied
by such documents as required by the Company in accordance with its cashless exercise procedure. Participant’s right to exercise the
Option shall be conditioned upon and subject to satisfaction, in a manner acceptable to the



Company, of any withholding tax liability under any state or federal law arising in connection with exercise of the Option.
(d) Transferability. This Option shall not be assignable or transferable by a Participant other than by will or the laws of

descent and distribution.

(e) Recoupment or “Clawback”. This Option, the shares issued under it, and any dividends or proceeds from a sale of such
shares are subject to any applicable recoupment or “clawback” policies of the Company, as in effect from time to time.

2. Vesting and Exercise Period in the Event of Death or Disability. In the event (a) Participant dies while employed by the
Company or a Subsidiary or (b) Participant’s employment with the Company or a Subsidiary is terminated due to Participant’s Disability, this
Option shall become vested and exercisable for all of the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option, reduced by the number of
shares for which the Option was previously exercised. In such case, Participant’s vested Options may be exercised by Participant, or, in the case
of Participant’s death, by Participant’s designated beneficiary or estate, as applicable, during the remainder of the period preceding the
Expiration Date. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary within the United States, Grantee may designate a
beneficiary or beneficiaries to exercise this award and receive Shares issued pursuant to this award on or after the Participant’s death. Such
designation shall be in the form provided by or approved and accepted by the Plan administrator and shall revoke all prior designations. Such
designation shall be effective only if and when it is properly completed and delivered by Grantee during the Grantee’s lifetime in electronic form
to the Company’s agent at the following website: etrade.com, unless otherwise expressly accepted and acknowledged by the Plan administrator.
In the absence of any such valid and effective designation, benefits remaining unpaid at the Participant’s death shall be paid to the Participant’s
estate. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary outside the United States, no unexercised or restricted award shall
be assignable or transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

3. Vesting and Exercise Period in the Event of Retirement. In the event Participant’s employment with the Company and its
Subsidiaries is terminated for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, following eligibility for Retirement, this Option shall continue to
vest following Participant’s Retirement (as defined in “Exhibit B” attached hereto and not the Plan) pursuant to the vesting schedule set forth in
the Notice, reduced by the number of shares for which the Option was previously exercised. In such event, Participant’s vested Options may be
exercised by Participant during the remainder of the period preceding the Expiration Date.

4. Vesting and Exercise Period in the Event of Other Termination of Employment. In the event Participant’s employment with
the Company and its Subsidiaries is terminated for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause and prior to Retirement, this Option shall be
vested and exercisable only to the extent vested at the time of termination pursuant to the vesting schedule set forth in the Notice, reduced by the
number of shares for which the Option was previously exercised. In such event, Participant’s vested Options may be exercised by Participant
until the date that is three months after the date of such termination of employment or during the remainder of the period preceding the
Expiration Date, whichever is shorter.

5. Termination for Cause; Competing Activity; Solicitation. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein:

(a) Termination for Cause. This Option shall expire on the date that Participant’s employment with the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries is terminated for Cause, and this Option shall not be exercisable thereafter.
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(b) Competing Activity. If Participant engages in any Competing Activity during Participant’s employment with the
Company or a Subsidiary or within 2 years after the termination of Participant’s employment with the Company or its Subsidiaries for
any reason, (i) Participant shall forfeit all of Participant’s right, title and interest in and to any Options that are unexercised as of the time
of the Participant’s engaging in such Competing Activity and such Options shall be cancelled immediately following such event of
forfeiture, and (ii) Participant shall remit, upon demand by the Company, the “Repayment Amount” (as defined below).

(c) No Solicitation of Employees. During Participant’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and until
the date that is 2 years after date of termination for any reason, Participant will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or encourage any person
who was an employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during Participant’s employment or during the 1 year immediately prior
to Participant’s date of termination (“Protected Employee”), to leave employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or assist in
any way with the hiring of any Protected Employee by any future employer, person or other entity including but not limited to referral,
identification for potential employment, recommendation, interview, or direct or indirect supervision.

(d) No Solicitation of Customers or Vendors. During Participant’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and until the date that is 2 years after date of termination for any reason, Participant will not, directly or indirectly, solicit the Company’s
customers or vendors who were customers or vendors during the 1 year immediately prior to Participant’s date of termination to divert
their business away from or otherwise interfere with the business relationships of the Company with its customers and/or vendors on
Participant’s behalf or on behalf of any other entity or person. The foregoing restrictions shall only apply to those Company customers or
vendors with whom Participant had direct contact during the 1 year immediately prior to Participant’s date of termination.

(e) The “Repayment Amount” is (1) The excess of (i) the aggregate Fair Market Value, on the date of exercise, of the shares
of Common Stock for which this Option was exercised over (ii) the aggregate option price for such shares of Common Stock; and, (2)
The aggregate aftertax proceeds received by Participant upon the exercise of any Option granted under the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement. The Repayment Amount shall be payable in cash (which shall include a certified check or bank check), by the tender of
shares of Common Stock or by a combination of cash and Common Stock; provided that, regardless of the Fair Market Value of such
shares at the time of tender, the tender of the shares shall satisfy the obligation to pay the Repayment Amount for the same number of
shares of Common Stock delivered to the Company.

(f) For purposes of this Agreement, Participant will be deemed to be engaged in a “Competing Activity” if Participant,
acting in the same or similar capacity in which Participant performed services for the Company or acting in a capacity which involves
executive, managerial, financial or other significant leadership responsibilities, owns, manages, operates, controls, is employed by, or
participates in as a 5% or greater shareholder, partner, member or joint venturer, in a Competing Enterprise, or engages in, as an
independent contractor or otherwise, a Competing Enterprise for himself or on behalf of another person or entity. A “Competing
Enterprise” is any business engaged in any market which is a part of the Home Improvement Business as described below (i) with total
annual sales or revenues of at least five hundred million dollars ($500 million USD) and (ii) with retail locations or distribution facilities
in a US State or the District of Columbia or which engages in providing goods and/or services within the Home Improvement Business
to customers in the United States through electronic
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means (internet, mobile application, etc.), including but not limited to the following entities: The Home Depot, Inc.; Sears Holdings, Inc.
or Transform Holdco LLC; Menard, Inc.; Amazon.com, Inc.; Tractor Supply Co.; Harbor Freight Tools; Ace Hardware Corp.; Lumber
Liquidators Holdings, Inc.; Wayfair, Inc.; Walmart, Inc.; Best Buy, Inc.; HD Supply Holding, Inc.; Floor & Décor Holdings, Inc.; and
True Value Company.

The Company and its affiliated entities comprise an omni-channel provider of home improvement products and supplies for
maintenance, repair, remodeling, and decorating as well as appliances, installation and other services, supplies for the multi-family
housing industry, and supplies for builders, contractors, and maintenance professionals (the “Home Improvement Business”). The
Company operates retail locations and support facilities and offers products and services to consumers in all 50 states and the District of
Columbia through traditional retail locations, sales organizations, and on-line channels. The Company’s Home Improvement Business
requires a complex sourcing and supply network, multi-channel distribution and delivery systems, innovative information technology
resources, and a robust infrastructure support organization.

Participant recognizes and acknowledges that the Company has a legitimate business interest in maintaining its competitive position in a
dynamic industry and that restricting Participant for a reasonable period from performing work for, providing services to, or owning
more than a 5% interest in an enterprise which engages in business activities which are in competition with the Company is reasonable
and appropriate. Participant further acknowledges that the Company’s business would likely be damaged by Participant’s engaging in
competitive work activity during the non-competition period detailed above. Participant agrees that in Participant’s position with the
Company, Participant was provided access to or helped develop business information proprietary to the Company and that Participant
would inevitably disclose or otherwise utilize such information if Participant were to work for, provide services to, or own a substantial
interest in a Competing Enterprise during the non-competition period.

Should Participant wish to undertake a Competing Activity during Participant’s employment or before the expiration of the above-
referenced 2-year period, Participant must request written permission from the Executive Vice President, Human Resources of the
Company before undertaking such Competing Activity. The Company may approve or not approve the Competing Activity at its sole
discretion.

(g) Injunctive Relief. Grantee agrees that the provisions herein are important to and of material consideration to the
Company and that a breach of these provisions will cause irreparable harm to the Company and the Company considers that monetary
damages alone are an inadequate remedy to the Company for any such breach. Grantee further stipulates that, upon any breach by
Grantee of the provisions herein the Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief against Grantee without the necessity to post a bond
or, if such bond is nevertheless required, Grantee consents to setting such bond at the lowest amount permitted by law. This section shall
not be deemed to limit the legal and equitable remedies available to the Company or to limit the nature and extent of any claim by the
Company for damages caused by Grantee for breach of this Agreement.

(h) No Waiver. Nothing contained in this paragraph 5 shall be interpreted as or deemed to constitute a waiver of, or diminish
or be in lieu of, any other rights that the Company or a Subsidiary may possess as a result of Participant’s misconduct or involvement
with a business competing with the business of the Company or a Subsidiary.
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6. Minimum Exercise. This Option may not be exercised for less than fifty shares of Common Stock unless it is exercised for the
full number of shares that remain subject to the Option.

7. Fractional Shares. Fractional shares shall not be issuable hereunder, and when any provision hereof otherwise would entitle
Participant to a fractional share, the Committee shall determine, in its discretion, whether such fractional share shall be disregarded, whether
cash shall be given in lieu of a fractional share, or whether such fractional share shall be eliminated by rounding up.

8. No Right to Continued Employment. This Option does not confer upon Participant any right with respect to continuance of
employment by the Company or a Subsidiary, nor shall it interfere in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to terminate his
employment at any time.

9. Change in Capital Structure. In the event of a corporate transaction involving the Company (including, without limitation, any
stock dividend, stock split, extraordinary cash dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination or
exchange of shares), the terms of this Option shall be adjusted as provided in the Plan.

10. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina other than its choice
of laws provisions to the extent that such provisions would require or permit the application of the laws of a state other than North Carolina.
Each of the Parties to this Agreement consents to submit to the personal jurisdiction and venue of the Charlotte Division of the U.S. District
Court for the Western Division of North Carolina or the North Carolina Superior Court by motion or request for leave from any such court. Each
of the Parties further waives any right to seek change of venue from such Court due to inconvenient forum or other similar justification and will
pay to the other Parties the costs associated with responding to or otherwise opposing any motion or request for such relief.

11. Conflicts. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan as in effect on the date hereof and the provisions of this
Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall govern; provided, however, that the use of different definitions for certain terms in this Agreement
from the definitions of such terms in the Plan shall not be deemed to be a conflict with the Plan. All references herein to the Plan shall mean the
Plan, as it may be amended from time to time.

12. Participant Bound by Plan. Participant hereby acknowledges that a copy of the Plan has been made available to Participant
and agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions thereof.

13. Binding Effect. Subject to the limitations stated above and in the Plan, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the legatees, distributees, and personal representatives of Participant and the successors of the Company.

14. Incorporation of Notice. The Notice is incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.
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Exhibit A
Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
1000 Lowes Boulevard
Mail Code CBT11
Mooresville, NC 28117
Fax: (704) 757-0640

Attention:     Stock Plan Administration

RE:     Exercise of Stock Option

Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Option Agreement between Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and myself, I hereby give notice that I elect to exercise such Option as
indicated below. Therefore, enclosed is cash or cash equivalent acceptable to the Administrator, or Common Stock and/or combination thereof in full payment
of such option shares in accordance with said Agreement.

Type of exercise (check one): Hold All Shares ___ Sell-to-Cover ___ Sell All Shares ___

This request to exercise stock options relates to the following grant:

______Date of Grant: _________________________________
______Number of Options to exercise: ___________________

At this time, I am paying for the cost of the options and any applicable taxes due:

______Amount of check: $_____________________________

_________________________ _________________________ _________________________
Signature Date Sales ID

Residence Mailing Address or Brokerage Account Information for Electronic Delivery:

________________________________________ DTC #_________________________
________________________________________ Account # ______________________



Exhibit B
Certain Defined Terms

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the following meaning for purposes of this Agreement, notwithstanding any different definition for
any such term as set forth in the Plan. Embedded defined terms have the definitions prescribed in the Plan.

“Retirement” of Participant means the voluntary termination of employment with approval of the Board at least six (6) months after the Date of Grant
of this Option and on or after the date Participant has attained age fifty-five (55) and Participant’s age plus years of service equal or exceed seventy
(70); provided that, Participant has given the Board at least ten (10) days advance notice of such Retirement and participant has executed and not
revoked a Release of Claims provided to Participant by the Company upon receipt of Participant’s notice.

“Cause” to the extent permitted by the plan, shall be defined as any willful act or omission by Participant during their employment which participant
knew or should have known was contrary to law or the reasonable policies, procedures, rules, expectations, codes, or guidelines of the Company. The
definition of Cause shall also include the willful non-performance by Participant of the reasonable requirements of their position with the Company.



Exhibit 10.2

P E R F O R M A N C E S H A R E U N I T
A W A R D A G R E E M E N T

Non-transferable

G R A N T T O

_________________________________(“Grantee”)

by Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the “Company”) of

_________________________________Performance Share Units (the “Performance Share Units”)
pursuant to and subject to the provisions of the Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan”)
and to these terms and conditions set forth in this grant notice and the Terms and Conditions.

Unless terminated or paid earlier in accordance with the Plan or Section 4 of the Terms and Conditions, the Performance Share Units will be
earned and become vested and payable to the Grantee in the form of shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.50 par value, after the third
anniversary of the Date of Grant based on achievement of the Performance Objectives applicable to the Performance Share Units.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lowe’s Companies, Inc., acting by and through its duly authorized officer, has caused this Agreement to be executed
as of the Date of Grant.

LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC.

By:

Date of Grant:

Accepted by Grantee:

1



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Grant of Performance Share Units. The Company hereby grants Performance Share Units (the “Performance Share Units”) indicated on
the Performance Share Unit Award Agreement grant notice (the “Grant Notice”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan,
these Terms and Conditions and the Grant Notice (collectively, this “Agreement”) and any applicable recoupment or “clawback” policies
of the Company, as in effect from time to time. The actual number of Performance Share Units earned by the Grantee shall be based on the
Company’s achievement of the Performance Objectives as described in Sections 2 and 3 for the three fiscal year period beginning FY[ ]
and ending FY[ ] (the “Performance Period”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to
such terms in the Plan.

2. Performance Objectives for Performance Share Units. The Performance Objectives for the Performance Share Units shall be:

(a) the Company’s Average Return on Invested Capital (“ROIC”) for the Performance Period; and

(b) the total shareholder return (“TSR”) with respect to the Company’s Common Stock for the Performance Period relative to the
median TSR of the companies comprising the S&P 500 Index at the beginning of the Performance Period.

“Average ROIC” for the Performance Period means the amount determined by dividing the sum of the ROIC for each fiscal year in the
Performance Period by three (3).

“ROIC” for a fiscal year is determined by dividing:

(a) the Company’s lease adjusted net operating profit after taxes for such fiscal year, as reported in the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K, by

(b) the average of the Company’s invested capital as of the beginning and as of the end of such fiscal year, as reported in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K

For this purpose, invested capital means total debt, including current maturities, short-term borrowings, and operating lease liabilities,
plus total shareholder’s (deficit)/equity, as reported in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K.

“TSR” shall be determined by assuming the reinvestment of all dividends as of the ex-dividend date and using the twenty trading day
average closing price preceding the beginning and ending of the Performance Period.

The Committee shall make equitable adjustments to the Performance Objectives where necessary (i) in response to changes in applicable
laws or regulations, (ii) to account for items of gain, loss or expense that are related to the disposal (or acquisition) of a business or
change in accounting principles that was not anticipated at the Date of Grant, (iii) to account for unusual or non-recurring transactions
that were not anticipated at the Date of Grant, or (iv) to reflect other unusual, non-recurring or unexpected items, including but not
limited to stock buybacks, as determined in good faith by the Committee. All such adjustments shall be made in a consistent manner and
in accordance with the objectives of the Plan.
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3.    Determination of Number of Performance Share Units Earned. The number of Performance Share Units earned for the Performance Period
shall be determined in two steps.

(a) First, the number of Performance Share Units earned based on the Company’s Average ROIC for the Performance Period (the
“ROIC PSUs”) shall be determined in accordance with the following table:

Average ROIC
% of

Performance Share Units Earned
[ ]% or higher 150%

[ ]% 100%
[ ]% 50%

Less than [ ]% 0%

(b) Second, the number of ROIC PSUs will be multiplied by the TSR modifier shown in the following table with the result being
the Performance Share Units earned for the Performance Period:

Company’s TSR Percentage
Difference from the Median TSR

of the S&P 500 Index TSR Modifier
> +20% 1.33x

0% 1.00x
< -20% 0.67x

The number of Performance Shares Units earned for performance between discrete points in either of the tables in (a) or (b) above shall be
determined by linear interpolation.

The potential percentage of Performance Share Units that may be earned, after the application of the relative TSR modifier, shall be 0%
below threshold performance level and shall range from 34% at threshold performance level to 200% at maximum performance level.

4.    Distribution of Common Stock for Performance Share Units Earned.

(a) Distribution Following Expiration of Performance Period. Unless otherwise sooner forfeited in accordance with Section 4(b)
or distributed in accordance with Section 4(d), on or within 60 days after [ ] (the “Distribution Date”), the Company shall
distribute to the Grantee one share of Common Stock for each whole Performance Share Unit earned by the Grantee in
accordance with Sections 2 and 3.

(b) Termination of Employment Prior to Distribution Date. The Grantee shall forfeit all of Grantee’s right, title and interest in and
to the Performance Share Units in the event Grantee’s employment with the Company terminates before the Distribution Date
for any reason other than death, Disability or Retirement.

(c) Termination Due to Death, Disability or Retirement. In the event the Grantee’s employment with the Company terminates
prior to the Distribution Date due to death, Disability or Retirement, the Performance Share Units shall remain outstanding
and
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shall be earned in accordance with Sections 2 and 3 and shares of Common Stock for each whole Performance Share earned
shall be distributed on or within 60 days after the Distribution Date in accordance with Section 4(a). The definition of
“Retirement” for purposes of this Agreement shall have the following meaning and not the meaning assigned to such term in
the Plan: The voluntary termination of employment with the approval of the Board at least six (6) months after the Date of
Grant and on or after the date Grantee has attained age fifty-five (55) and Grantee’s age plus years of service equal or exceed
seventy (70); provided that, Grantee has given the Board at least ten (10) days advance notice of such Retirement and Grantee
has executed and not revoked a Release of Claims provided to Grantee by the Company upon receipt of Grantee’s notice.

(d) Change in Control Prior to Distribution Date. In the event a change in control of the Company (as defined in Section 409A of
the Internal Revenue Code) occurs before the Distribution Date, the Performance Share Units shall be earned in accordance
with Sections 2 and 3 based on the achievement of the Performance Objectives through the end of the fiscal year quarter
ending immediately prior to such change in control. Shares of Common Stock for each whole Performance Share Unit earned
shall be distributed to the Grantee as soon as administratively practicable, but in no event later than 30 days following such
change in control.

(e) Recoupment or “Clawback”. The Performance Share Units, the shares distributed with respect to the Performance Share Units,
and any dividends or proceeds from a sale of such shares are subject to any applicable recoupment or “clawback” policies of
the Company, as in effect from time to time.

5.     No Stockholder Rights. The Performance Share Units shall not entitle the Grantee to any voting, dividend or other rights as a stockholder of
the Company until shares of Common Stock are distributed to Grantee in accordance with Section 4.

6.        Competing Activity. If Grantee engages in any Competing Activity during Grantee’s employment with the Company or a Subsidiary or
within 2 years after the termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company or its Subsidiaries for any reason, (a) Grantee shall forfeit
all of Grantee’s right, title and interest in and to any Performance Share Units as of the time of the Grantee’s engaging in such Competing
Activity and such Performance Share Units shall revert to the Company immediately following such event of forfeiture, and (b) Grantee
shall remit, upon demand by the Company, the “Repayment Amount” with respect to any shares of Common Stock that were granted to
Grantee as payment of Performance Share Units under the terms of this Agreement. The “Repayment Amount” is the aggregate Fair
Market Value of the Common Stock underlying the Performance Share Units at the time of delivery to Grantee. The Repayment Amount
shall be payable in cash (which shall include a certified check or bank check), by the tender of shares of Common Stock or by a
combination of cash and Common Stock; provided that, regardless of the Fair Market Value of such shares at the time of tender, the tender
of the shares shall satisfy the obligation to pay the Repayment Amount for the same number of shares of Common Stock delivered to the
Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Grantee will be deemed to be engaged in a “Competing Activity” if Grantee, acting in the same or similar
capacity in which Grantee performed services for the Company or acting in a capacity which involves executive, managerial, financial or
other significant leadership responsibilities, owns, manages, operates, controls, is employed by, or
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participates in as a 5% or greater shareholder, partner, member or joint venturer, in a Competing Enterprise, or engages in, as an
independent contractor or otherwise, a Competing Enterprise for himself or on behalf of another person or entity. A “Competing
Enterprise” is any business engaged in any market which is a part of the Home Improvement Business as described below (i) with total
annual sales or revenues of at least five hundred million dollars ($500 million USD) and (ii) with retail locations or distribution facilities in
a US State or the District of Columbia or which engages in providing goods and/or services within the Home Improvement Business to
customers in the United States through electronic means (internet, mobile application, etc.), including but not limited to the following
entities: The Home Depot, Inc.; Sears Holdings, Inc. or Transform Holdco LLC; Menard, Inc.; Amazon.com, Inc.; Tractor Supply Co.;
Harbor Freight Tools; Ace Hardware Corp.; Lumber Liquidators Holdings, Inc.; Wayfair, Inc.; Walmart, Inc.; Best Buy Co., Inc., HD
Supply Holding, Inc.; Floor & Décor Holdings, Inc.; and True Value Company.

The Company and its affiliated entities comprise an omni-channel provider of home improvement products and supplies for maintenance,
repair, remodeling, and decorating as well as appliances, installation or other services, supplies for the multi-family housing industry, and
supplies for builders, contractors, and maintenance professionals. (the “Home Improvement Business”). The Company operates retail
locations and support facilities and offers products and services to consumers in all 50 states and the District of Columbia through
traditional retail locations, sales organizations, and on-line channels. The Company’s Home Improvement Business requires a complex
sourcing and supply network, multi-channel distribution and delivery systems, innovative information technology resources, and a robust
infrastructure support organization.

Grantee recognizes and acknowledges that the Company has a legitimate business interest in maintaining its competitive position in a
dynamic industry and that restricting Grantee for a reasonable period from performing work for, providing services to, or owning more
than a 5% interest in an enterprise which engages in business activities which are in competition with the Company is reasonable and
appropriate. Grantee further acknowledges that the Company’s business would likely be damaged by Grantee’s engaging in competitive
work activity during the non-competition period detailed above. Grantee agrees that in Grantee’s position with the Company, Grantee was
provided access to or helped develop business information proprietary to the Company and that Grantee would inevitably disclose or
otherwise utilize such information if Grantee were to work for, provide services to, or own a substantial interest in a Competing Activity
during the non-competition period.

Should Grantee wish to undertake a Competing Activity during Grantee’s employment or before the expiration of the above-referenced 2-
year period, Grantee must request written permission from the Executive Vice President, Human Resources of the Company before
undertaking such Competing Activity. The Company may approve or not approve the Competing Activity at its sole discretion.

Nothing contained in this Section 6 shall be interpreted as or deemed to constitute a waiver of, or diminish or be in lieu of, any other rights
that the Company or a Subsidiary may possess as a result of Grantee’s misconduct or involvement with a business competing with the
business of the Company or a Subsidiary.

7. No Solicitation of Employees. During Grantee’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and until the date that is 2 years
after date of termination for any reason, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or encourage any person who was an employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries during Grantee’s employment who worked within Grantee’s organization within the Company
during the 1 year immediately prior to Grantee’s date of termination
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(“Protected Employee”), to leave employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or assist in any way with the hiring of any
Protected Employee by any future employer, person or other entity including but not limited to referral, identification for potential
employment, recommendation, interview, or direct or indirect supervision.

8. No Solicitation of Customers or Vendors. During Grantee’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and until the date that
is 2 years after date of termination for any reason, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly, solicit the Company’s customers or vendors with
whom Grantee had material contact or about whom Grantee has confidential information obtained during the 1 year immediately prior to
Grantee’s date of termination to divert their business away from or otherwise interfere with the business relationships of the Company with
its customers and/or vendors on Grantee’s behalf or on behalf of any other entity or person.

9. Injunctive Relief. Grantee agrees that the provisions herein are important to and of material consideration to the Company and that a
breach of these provisions will cause irreparable harm to the Company and that monetary damages alone are an inadequate remedy to the
Company for any such breach. Grantee further stipulates that, upon any breach by Grantee of the provisions herein the Company shall be
entitled to injunctive relief against Grantee without the necessity to post a bond or, if such bond is nevertheless required, Grantee consents
to setting such bond at the lowest amount permitted by law. This section shall not be deemed to limit the legal and equitable remedies
available to the Company or to limit the nature and extent of any claim by the Company for damages caused by Grantee for breach of this
Agreement.

10. No Right of Continued Employment. Nothing in this Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any way the right of the Company or any
Subsidiary to terminate Grantee’s employment at any time, nor confer upon Grantee any right to continue in the employ of the Company
or any Subsidiary.

11. Payment of Taxes.

(a) The Company will automatically withhold a number of shares of Common Stock or Units (as the case may be) having a fair
market value equal to an amount up to the maximum statutory rate to satisfy federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including
Grantee’s FICA obligation), unless Grantee notifies the Company thirty (30) days prior to the date such withholding is required
that he or she will satisfy his or her tax withholding obligations in cash.

(b) If Grantee chooses to satisfy his or her tax withholding obligations in cash and complies with the above notification requirement,
Grantee will, no later than the date as of which any amount related to the Performance Share Units first becomes includable in
Grantee’s gross income for federal income tax purposes,
pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the Committee regarding payment of, any federal, state and local
taxes of any kind (including Grantee’s FICA obligation) required by law to be withheld with respect to such amount.

The obligations of the Company under this Agreement will be conditional on such payment or arrangements, and the Company, and, where
applicable, its Subsidiaries will, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any kind
otherwise due to Grantee.
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12. Amendment. The Committee may amend or terminate this Agreement without the consent of Grantee; provided, however, that such
amendment or termination shall not, without Grantee’s consent, reduce or diminish the value of this award.

13. Plan Controls. The terms contained in the Plan, including without limitation the antidilution adjustment provisions, are incorporated into
and made a part of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Plan. In the event of
any actual or alleged conflict between the provisions of the Plan and the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall be
controlling and determinative.

14. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon any successor of the Company, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the
Plan.

15. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement are invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the other provisions of
this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been included.

16. Notice. Notices and communications under this Agreement must be in writing and either personally delivered or sent by registered or
certified United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to the Company must be addressed to:

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Attn: Stock Plan Administrator
1000 Lowes Boulevard
Mooresville, NC 28117

or any other address designated by the Company in a written notice to Grantee. Notices to Grantee will be directed to the address of
Grantee then currently on file with the Company, or at any other address given by Grantee in a written notice to the Company.

17.     Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina other than its choice of laws
provisions to the extent that such provisions would require or permit the application of the laws of a state other than North Carolina. Each
of the Parties to this Agreement consents to submit to the personal jurisdiction and venue of the Charlotte Division of the U.S. District
Court for the Western Division of North Carolina or the North Carolina Superior Court by motion or request for leave from any such court.
Each of the Parties further waives any right to seek change of venue from such Court due to inconvenient forum or other similar
justification and will pay to the other Parties the costs associated with responding to or otherwise opposing any motion or request for such
relief.

18.      Beneficiary Designation. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary within the United States, Grantee may
designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this award on or after the Participant’s
death. Such designation shall be in the form provided by or approved and accepted by the Plan administrator and shall revoke all prior
designations. Such designation shall be effective only if and when it is properly completed and delivered by Grantee during the Grantee’s
lifetime in electronic form to the Company’s agent at the following website: etrade.com, unless otherwise expressly accepted and
acknowledged by the Plan administrator. In the absence of any such valid and effective designation, benefits remaining unpaid at the
Participant’s death shall be paid to the Participant’s estate. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary outside
the United States, no
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unexercised or restricted award shall be assignable or transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.
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Exhibit 10.3

R E S T R I C T E D S T O C K A W A R D A G R E E M E N T

Non-transferable

G R A N T T O

(“Grantee”)

by Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the “Company”) of shares of its common stock, $0.50 par value (the “Shares”) pursuant to and subject
to the provisions of the Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan”), and to the
terms and conditions set forth in this grant notice and the Terms and Conditions.

Total Granted:

Except as otherwise provided in Section 2 of the Terms and Conditions, the Shares shall vest and no longer be subject to forfeiture as
to the following percentage of the Shares awarded hereunder, on the following date:

Percentage of Shares Date of Vesting
[] []

Notwithstanding the vesting of the Shares on the Date of Vesting set forth above or as otherwise provided in Section 2 of the Terms
and Conditions, the Shares shall be Non-transferable Shares until the expiration of the transfer restrictions set forth in Section 3 of
the Terms and Conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lowe’s Companies, Inc., acting by and through its duly authorized officer, has caused this Agreement to
be executed as of the Date of Grant.

LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC.

By:

Date of Grant:

Accepted by Grantee:



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.    Grant of Shares. The Company hereby grants to Grantee the Shares indicated on the Restricted Stock Award Agreement grant notice (the
“Grant Notice”), subject to the restrictions and the other terms and conditions set forth in the Plan, these Terms and Conditions and the
Grant Notice (collectively, this “Agreement”), and any applicable recoupment or “clawback” policies of the Company, as in effect from
time to time. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Plan.

2.    Vesting of Shares. As of the Date of Grant, the Shares shall be “Unvested Shares” and fully forfeitable. The Unvested Shares shall become
“Vested Shares” as of the earliest to occur of the following (the period prior to such vesting being referred to herein as the “Vesting
Period”):

(a)    As of the Date of Vesting specified in the Grant Notice;

(b)        On the date of termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries by reason of Grantee’s death,
Disability or Retirement; or

(c)    On the date of termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries by the Company without Cause or by
Grantee’s resignation for Good Reason, in either case within twelve (12) months after the occurrence of a Change in Control.

If Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates for any reason prior to the Unvested Shares becoming Vested
Shares in accordance with this Section 2, Grantee shall forfeit all of Grantee’s right, title and interest in and to the Unvested Shares as of
the date of Grantee’s termination of employment, and such Unvested Shares shall revert to the Company immediately following the
event of forfeiture.

The definition of “Retirement” for purposes of this Agreement shall have the following meaning and not the meaning assigned to such
term in the Plan: The voluntary termination of employment with the approval of the Board at least six (6) months after the Date of Grant
and on or after the date Grantee has attained age fifty-five (55) and Grantee’s age plus years of service equal or exceed seventy (70);
provided that, Grantee has given the Board at least ten (10) days advance notice of such Retirement and Grantee has executed and not
revoked a Release of Claims provided to Grantee by the Company upon receipt of Grantee’s notice.

3.       Share Transfer Restrictions. “Non-transferable Shares” means those Shares that are subject to the transfer restrictions imposed under this
Section 3 which restrictions have not expired or terminated. Non-transferable Shares may not be sold, transferred, exchanged, assigned,
pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered.

The restrictions imposed under this Section shall apply to all shares of the Company’s common stock or other securities issued with
respect to Non-transferable Shares hereunder in connection with any merger, reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization, stock
dividend or other change in corporate structure affecting the common stock of the Company.



The transfer restrictions imposed under this Section 3 will expire as to all of the Shares indicated in the Grant Notice on the earliest to
occur of the following (the period prior to such expiration being referred to herein as the “Non-transferable Period”):

(a)    On the Date of Vesting specified in the Grant Notice;

(b)        On the date of termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries by reason of Grantee’s death or
Disability; or

(c)    On the date of termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries by the Company without Cause or by
Grantee’s resignation for Good Reason, in either case within twelve (12) months after the occurrence of a Change in Control.

4.    Delivery of Shares. The Shares will be registered in the name of Grantee as of the Date of Grant and will be held by the Company during the
Non-transferable Period in certificated or uncertificated form. If a certificate for Non-transferable Shares is issued during the Non-
transferable Period, such certificate shall be registered in the name of Grantee and shall bear a legend in substantially the following form
(in addition to any legend required under applicable state securities laws):

“This certificate and the shares of stock represented hereby are subject to the terms and conditions (including forfeiture and restrictions
against transfer) contained in a Restricted Stock Award Agreement between the registered owner of the shares represented hereby and
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. Release from such terms and conditions shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of such
Agreement, copies of which are on file in the offices of Lowe’s Companies, Inc.”

Stock certificates for the Shares, without the above legend, shall be delivered to Grantee or Grantee’s designee upon request of Grantee
after the expiration of the Non-transferable Period, but delivery may be postponed for such period as may be required for the Company
with reasonable diligence to comply if deemed advisable by the Company, with registration requirements under the Securities Act of
1933, listing requirements under the rules of any stock exchange, and requirements under any other law or regulation applicable to the
issuance or transfer of the Shares.

5.    Voting and Dividend Rights. Grantee, as beneficial owner of the Shares, shall have full voting and dividend rights with respect to the Shares
during and after the Vesting Period and Non-transferable Period. If Grantee forfeits any rights Grantee may have under this Agreement,
Grantee shall no longer have any rights as a shareholder with respect to the Shares or any interest therein and Grantee shall no longer be
entitled to receive dividends on such Shares. In the event that for any reason Grantee shall have received dividends upon such Shares
after such forfeiture, Grantee shall repay to the Company an amount equal to such dividends.

6.       Competing Activity.   If Grantee engages in any Competing Activity during Grantee’s employment with the Company or a Subsidiary or
within 2 years after the termination of Grantee’s employment with the Company or its Subsidiaries for any reason, (i) Grantee shall
forfeit all of Grantee’s right, title and interest in and to any Unvested Shares or Non-transferable Shares as of the time of the Grantee’s
engaging in such Competing Activity and such Shares shall revert to the Company immediately following such event of forfeiture, and
(ii) Grantee shall



remit, upon demand by the Company, the “Repayment Amount” (as defined in the following sentence), with respect to any Shares that
were granted to Grantee under the terms of this Agreement.

The “Repayment Amount” is the aggregate Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time of delivery to Grantee.  The Repayment Amount
shall be payable in cash (which shall include a certified check or bank check), by the tender of shares of Common Stock or by a
combination of cash and Common Stock; provided that, regardless of the Fair Market Value of such shares at the time of tender, the
tender of the shares shall satisfy the obligation to pay the Repayment Amount for the same number of shares of Common Stock
delivered to the Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Grantee will be deemed to be engaged in a “Competing Activity” if Grantee, acting in the same or
similar capacity in which Grantee performed services for the Company or acting in a capacity which involves executive, managerial,
financial or other significant leadership responsibilities, owns, manages, operates, controls, is employed by, or participates in as a 5% or
greater shareholder, partner, member or joint venturer, in a Competing Enterprise, or engages in, as an independent contractor or
otherwise, a Competing Enterprise for himself or on behalf of another person or entity.  A “Competing Enterprise” is any business
engaged in any market which is a part of the Home Improvement Business as described below (i) with total annual sales or revenues of
at least five hundred million dollars ($500 million USD) and (ii) with retail locations or distribution facilities in a US State or the District
of Columbia or which engages in providing goods and/or services within the Home Improvement Business to customers in the United
States through electronic means (internet, mobile application, etc.), including but not limited to the following entities:  The Home Depot,
Inc.; Sears Holdings, Inc. or Transform Holdco LLC; Menard, Inc.; Amazon.com, Inc.; Tractor Supply Co.; Harbor Freight Tools; Ace
Hardware Corp.; Lumber Liquidators Holdings, Inc.; Wayfair, Inc.; Walmart, Inc.; Best Buy Co., Inc., HD Supply Holding, Inc.; Floor &
Décor Holdings, Inc.; and True Value Company.

The Company and its affiliated entities comprise an omni-channel provider of home improvement products and supplies for
maintenance, repair, remodeling, and decorating as well as appliances, installation and other services, supplies for the multi-family
housing industry, and supplies for builders, contractors, and maintenance professionals (the “Home Improvement Business”).   The
Company operates retail locations and support facilities and offers products and services to consumers in all 50 states and the District of
Columbia through traditional retail locations, sales organizations, and on-line channels.  The Company’s Home Improvement Business
requires a complex sourcing and supply network, multi-channel distribution and delivery systems, innovative information technology
resources, and a robust infrastructure support organization.

Grantee recognizes and acknowledges that the Company has a legitimate business interest in maintaining its competitive position in a
dynamic industry and that restricting Grantee for a reasonable period from performing work for, providing services to, or owning more
than a 5% interest in an enterprise which engages in business activities which are in competition with the Company is reasonable and
appropriate.  Grantee further acknowledges that the Company’s business would likely be damaged by Grantee’s engaging in competitive
work activity during the non-competition period detailed above.  Grantee agrees that in Grantee’s position with the Company, Grantee
was provided access to or helped develop business information proprietary to the Company and that Grantee would inevitably disclose
or otherwise utilize such information if Grantee were to work for, provide services to, or own a substantial interest in a Competing
Enterprise during the non-competition period.



Should Grantee wish to undertake a Competing Activity during Grantee’s employment or before the expiration of the above-referenced
2-year period, Grantee must request written permission from the Executive Vice President, Human Resources of the Company before
undertaking such Competing Activity. The Company may approve or not approve the Competing Activity at its sole discretion.

Nothing contained in this Section 6 shall be interpreted as or deemed to constitute a waiver of, or diminish or be in lieu of, any other
rights that the Company or a Subsidiary may possess as a result of Grantee’s misconduct or involvement with a business competing with
the business of the Company or a Subsidiary. This section does not apply to Grantee if Grantee works in the State of California at the end
of Grantee’s employment with the Company.  

7.    No Solicitation of Employees.  During Grantee’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and until the date that is 2 years
after date of termination for any reason, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or encourage any person who was an employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries during Grantee’s employment or during the 1 year immediately prior to Grantee’s date of
termination (“Protected Employee”), to leave employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or assist in any way with the
hiring of any Protected Employee by any future employer, person or other entity including but not limited to referral, identification for
potential employment, recommendation, interview, or direct or indirect supervision.

8.    No Solicitation of Customers or Vendors. During Grantee’s employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries and until the date that
is 2 years after date of termination for any reason, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly, solicit the Company’s customers or vendors
who were customers or vendors during the 1 year immediately prior to Grantee’s date of termination to divert their business away from
or otherwise interfere with the business relationships of the Company with its customers and/or vendors on Grantee’s behalf or on behalf
of any other entity or person. The foregoing restrictions shall only apply to those Company customers or vendors with whom Grantee
had direct contact during the 1 year immediately prior to Grantee’s date of termination.

9.    Injunctive Relief.  Grantee agrees that the provisions herein are important to and of material consideration to the Company and that a breach
of these provisions will cause irreparable harm to the Company and the Company considers that monetary damages alone are an
inadequate remedy to the Company for any such breach. Grantee further stipulates that, upon any breach by Grantee of the provisions
herein the Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief against Grantee without the necessity to post a bond or, if such bond is
nevertheless required, Grantee consents to setting such bond at the lowest amount permitted by law. This section shall not be deemed to
limit the legal and equitable remedies available to the Company or to limit the nature and extent of any claim by the Company for
damages caused by Grantee for breach of this Agreement.

10.    No Right of Continued Employment. Nothing in this Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any way the right of the Company or any
Subsidiary to terminate Grantee’s employment at any time, nor confer upon Grantee any right to continue in the employ of the Company
or any Subsidiary.

11.    Payment of Taxes.



(a)       Upon issuance of the Shares hereunder, Grantee may make an election to be taxed upon such award under Section 83(b) of the
Code. To effect such election, Grantee may file an appropriate election with Internal Revenue Service within thirty (30) days
after award of the Shares and otherwise in accordance with applicable Treasury Regulations.

(b)    At the end of the Vesting Period, the Company will automatically withhold a number of Shares having a fair market value equal to
an amount up to the maximum statutory rate to satisfy federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including Grantee’s FICA
obligation), unless Grantee notifies the Company thirty (30) days prior to the expiration and

termination of the Vesting Period that he or she will satisfy his or her tax withholding obligations in cash.
(c)        In the event Grantee chooses to satisfy Grantee’s tax withholding obligations in cash and complies with the above notification

requirement, Grantee will, no later than the date as of which any amount related to the Shares first becomes includable in
Grantee’s gross taxable income for federal income tax purposes, pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to
the Committee regarding payment of, any federal, state and local taxes of any kind (including Grantee’s FICA obligation)
required by law to be withheld with respect to such amount.

The obligations of the Company under this Agreement will be conditional on such payment or arrangements, and the Company, and,
where applicable, its Subsidiaries will, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any
kind otherwise due to Grantee.

12.       Amendment. The Committee may amend or terminate this Agreement without the consent of Grantee; provided, however, that such
amendment or termination shall not, without Grantee’s consent, reduce or diminish the value of this award determined as if it had been
fully vested (i.e., as if all restrictions on the Shares hereunder had expired) on the date of such amendment or termination.

13.    Plan Controls; Recoupment or “Clawback”. The terms contained in the Plan, including without limitation the antidilution adjustment
provisions, are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the Plan. In the event of any actual or alleged conflict between the provisions of the Plan and the provisions of this
Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall be controlling and determinative. The Shares and any dividends or proceeds from a sale of
Shares are subject to any applicable recoupment or “clawback” policies of the Company, as in effect from time to time.

14.    Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon any successor of the Company, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the
Plan.

15.    Severability. If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement are invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the other provisions of
this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been included.

16.       Notice. Notices and communications under this Agreement must be in writing and either personally delivered or sent by registered or
certified United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to the Company must be addressed to:



Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Attn: Stock Plan Administrator
1000 Lowes Boulevard
Mooresville, NC 28117

or any other address designated by the Company in a written notice to Grantee. Notices to Grantee will be directed to the address of
Grantee then currently on file with the Company, or at any other address given by Grantee in a written notice to the Company.

17.       Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina other than its choice of laws
provisions to the extent that such provisions would require

or permit the application of the laws of a state other than North Carolina. Each of the Parties to this Agreement consents to submit to the
personal jurisdiction and venue of the Charlotte Division of the U.S. District Court for the Western District of North Carolina, or if
federal jurisdiction is not available, the North Carolina Superior Court in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Agreement and specifically waives any right to attempt to deny or defeat personal jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Western
District of North Carolina or the North Carolina Superior Court by motion or request for leave from any such court. Each of the Parties
further waives any right to seek change of venue from such Court due to inconvenient forum or other similar justification and will pay to
the other Parties the costs associated with responding to or otherwise opposing any motion or request for such relief.

18.       Beneficiary Designation. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary within the United States, Grantee may
designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive Shares issued pursuant to this award on or after the Participant’s death. Such
designation shall be in the form provided by or approved and accepted by the Plan administrator and shall revoke all prior designations.
Such designation shall be effective only if and when it is properly completed and delivered by Grantee during the Grantee’s lifetime in
electronic form to the Company’s agent at the following website: etrade.com, unless otherwise expressly accepted and acknowledged by
the Plan administrator. In the absence of any such valid and effective designation, benefits remaining unpaid at the Participant’s death
shall be paid to the Participant’s estate. If Grantee is employed by the Company or a Participating Subsidiary outside the United States,
no unexercised or restricted award shall be assignable or transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.



Exhibit 15.1

June 1, 2023

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lowe’s Companies, Inc.

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
1000 Lowes Boulevard
Mooresville, North Carolina 28117

We are aware that our report dated June 1, 2023, on our review of the interim financial information of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries appearing in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2023, is incorporated by reference in the following Registration Statements:

Description
Registration

Statement Number

Form S-3 ASR
Lowe’s Stock Advantage Direct Stock Purchase Plan 333-248600
Debt Securities, Preferred Stock, Common Stock 333-258108

Form S-8
Lowe’s 401(k) Plan 033-29772
Lowe’s Companies Benefit Restoration Plan 333-97811
Lowe’s Companies Cash Deferral Plan 333-114435
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan 333-138031; 333-196513
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 333-249586

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina



Exhibit 31.1 
CERTIFICATION

I, Marvin R. Ellison, certify that:

(1)  I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2023 of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the Registrant);

(2)  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3)  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4)  The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5)  The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

June 1, 2023   /s/ Marvin R. Ellison
Date   Marvin R. Ellison

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2 
CERTIFICATION

I, Brandon J. Sink, certify that:

(1)  I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2023 of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the Registrant);

(2)  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3)  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4)  The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5)  The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

June 1, 2023   /s/ Brandon J. Sink
Date   Brandon J. Sink

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
 

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the Company) for the period ended May 5, 2023, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Marvin R. Ellison, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Marvin R. Ellison
Marvin R. Ellison
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
June 1, 2023



Exhibit 32.2
 

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. (the Company) for the period ended May 5, 2023, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Brandon J. Sink, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Brandon J. Sink
Brandon J. Sink
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
June 1, 2023
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LOWE’S 401(k) PLAN

As Amended and Restated Effective as of January 1, 2023
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LOWE’S 401(k) PLAN

As Amended and Restated Effective as of January 1, 2023

Section 1
Nature of the Plan

The purpose of this Plan is to encourage participating Employees to save funds on a tax- favored basis and to provide

Participants with an opportunity to accumulate capital for their future economic security. The Plan (originally adopted effective as of

February 1, 1984) is hereby amended and restated effective as of January 1, 2023. The Plan is a combination profit sharing plan that

includes a “cash or deferred arrangement” under Section 401(k) of the Code, stock bonus plan and, effective on and after

September 13, 2002, employee stock ownership plan, as described below.

All Trust Assets accumulated under the Plan will be administered, distributed and otherwise governed by the provisions of

this Plan and the related Trust Agreement. The Plan is administered by a Committee for the exclusive benefit of Participants (and

their Beneficiaries).

Effective as of June 22, 2002, Lowe’s added a stock bonus feature to the Plan in the form of Performance Matching

Contributions. Performance Matching Contributions were eliminated for Plan Years beginning on and after February 3, 2007.

Effective as of September 13, 2002, the Lowe’s Companies Employees Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”) was merged into

this Plan. In connection with such merger, the account of each participant in the ESOP on September 13, 2002 was transferred to a

separate ESOP Account in this Plan on his behalf. The Lowe’s Stock fund under this Plan is designed to invest primarily in

qualifying employer securities and continues to constitute an employee stock ownership plan under Section 4975(e)(7) of the Code.
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Section 2
Definitions

In this Plan, whenever the context so indicates, the singular or plural number and the masculine, feminine or neuter gender

shall be deemed to include the other, the terms “he,” “his” and “him” shall refer to a Participant, and the capitalized terms shall have

the following meanings:

Account The separate record maintained for each Participant to reflect all allocations and
distributions with respect to the Participant under the Plan. Each Participant may have
a Salary Deferral Account, a Roth Account, a Matching Account, an ESOP
Diversification Account, an ESOP Account, a Rollover Account, a Roth Rollover
Account, or any other Account or sub-account established by the Committee from time
to time. See Section 6.

Anniversary Date December 31  of each year (the last day of each Plan Year).

Beneficiary The person (or persons) entitled to receive any benefit under the Plan in the event of a
Participant’s death. See Section 9(b).

Board of Directors The Board of Directors of Lowe’s Companies, Inc., a North Carolina corporation.

Capital Accumulation The total balances in a Participant’s Accounts under the Plan.

Catch-Up Contributions Contributions made pursuant to the elections of Participants in accordance with
Section 4(b).

Code The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Committee The Committee appointed by the Board of Directors to administer the Plan. See
Section 12.

Company Match Contributions Contributions made under the Plan with respect to a Participant’s Salary Deferral
Contributions as described in Section 4(c).

st
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Compensation From January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022, the total remuneration paid to an
Employee by Lowe’s in each Plan Year, as reportable on IRS Form W 2, including the
amount (if any) of (i) Salary Deferral Contributions made on the Employee’s behalf for
the Plan Year, (ii) salary reductions under the Lowe’s Companies Flexible Benefit Plan
(pursuant to Section 125 of the Code), and (iii) elective amounts that are not includible
in the gross income of the Employee under Section 132(f), 402(e)(3), 402(h) or 403(b)
of the Code, but excluding reimbursements or other expense allowances, fringe
benefits (cash and noncash), moving expenses, deferred compensation and welfare
benefits and any amount in excess of $255,000 (as adjusted after 2013 for increases in
the cost of living pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) of the Code); provided, however,
notwithstanding the foregoing with respect to any Participant employed by
Maintenance Supply Headquarters, LP during the 2020 plan year, Compensation shall
mean the total remuneration paid to any Employee, as reported on IRS Form W-2,
without exclusions.

Effective as of January 1, 2023, the total remuneration paid to an Employee by Lowe’s
in each Plan Year, as reportable on IRS Form W 2, including the amount (if any) of (i)
Salary Deferral Contributions made on the Employee’s behalf for the Plan Year, (ii)
salary reductions under the Lowe’s Companies Flexible Benefit Plan (pursuant to
Section 125 of the Code), and (iii) elective amounts that are not includible in the gross
income of the Employee under Section 132(f), 402(e)(3), 402(h) or 403(b) of the
Code, but excluding reimbursements or other expense allowances, fringe benefits
(cash and noncash), moving expenses, deferred compensation and welfare benefits and
any amount in excess of $330,000 (as adjusted after 2023 for increases in the cost of
living pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) of the Code).

Contributions Salary Deferral Contributions and Company Match Contributions paid to the Trust by
Lowe’s. See Section 4.
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Deferral Compensation Effective from January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2022, the salary or wages, overtime
premium pay, incentive bonuses and commissions paid to a Participant during a
payroll period but excluding any amount in excess of $280,000 (as adjusted after 2019
for increases in the cost of living pursuant to Code Section 401(a)(17)). Effective May
1, 2022, the salary or wages, overtime premium pay, incentive bonuses (other than any
sign-on bonuses, recognition awards or other cash awards not connected with a formal
incentive plan) and commissions paid to a Participant during a payroll period but
excluding any amount in excess of $280,000 (as adjusted after 2019 for increases in
the cost of living pursuant to Code Section 401(a)(17)). Deferral Compensation shall
include compensation paid after a Participant separates from service but only to the
extent such compensation would have been Deferral Compensation if paid prior to
such separation from service and only if paid prior to the first pay period that begins
30 days after such separation from service.

Effective as of January 1, 2023, the total remuneration paid to an Employee by Lowe’s
in each Plan Year, as reportable on IRS Form W 2, including the amount (if any) of (i)
Salary Deferral Contributions made on the Employee’s behalf for the Plan Year, (ii)
salary reductions under the Lowe’s Companies Flexible Benefit Plan (pursuant to
Section 125 of the Code), and (iii) elective amounts that are not includible in the gross
income of the Employee under Section 132(f), 402(e)(3), 402(h) or 403(b) of the
Code, but excluding reimbursements or other expense allowances, fringe benefits
(cash and noncash), moving expenses, deferred compensation and welfare benefits and
any amount in excess of $330,000 (as adjusted after 2023 for increases in the cost of
living pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) of the Code).

Employee Any individual who is treated as a common-law employee by Lowe’s; provided,
however, that an independent contractor (or other individual) who is reclassified as a
common-law employee on a retroactive basis shall not be treated as having been an
Employee for purposes of the Plan for any period prior to the date that he is so
reclassified. A leased employee, as described in Section 414(n)(2) of the Code, is not
an Employee for purposes of this Plan.

ERISA The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
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ESOP The Lowe’s Companies Employee Stock Ownership Plan, which was an “employee
stock ownership plan” within the meaning of Section 4975(e)(7) of the Code and
which was merged into the Plan effective as of September 13, 2002.

ESOP Account The Account which reflects a Participant’s interest in the ESOP which was transferred
to the Plan from the ESOP in connection with the merger of the ESOP into the Plan
effective as of September 13, 2002.

ESOP Diversification Account The Account which reflects a Participant’s interest attributable to amounts transferred
to the Plan from the ESOP prior to September 13, 2002 pursuant to Section 14(b) of
the ESOP.

Highly Compensated Employee An Employee who (i) had Statutory Compensation in excess of $150,000 in the
preceding Plan Year or (ii) is a “5% owner” (as defined in Section 416(i)(1)(B)(i) of
the Code) at any time during the Plan Year or the preceding Plan Year. The $150,000
amount shall be adjusted after 2023 for increases in the cost of living pursuant to
Section 414(q)(1) of the Code. The top paid group election set forth in Section 414(q)
(3) of the Code is not being applied until otherwise elected by Lowe’s by means of a
Plan amendment.

Lowe’s Lowe’s Companies, Inc., a North Carolina corporation, and each direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (including a limited liability company) which adopts the
Plan for the benefit of its Employees.

Lowe’s Stock Shares of common stock issued by Lowe’s Companies, Inc., which shares are traded
on the New York Stock Exchange.

Matching Account The Account that reflects each Participant’s interest attributable to Matching
Contributions. The portion of the Participants’ Matching Accounts that consists of the
Performance Matching Contributions made for Plan Years ending on or after
January 31, 2003 shall be considered a stock bonus plan so long as such contributions
consist of Lowe’s Stock.

Matching Contributions Company Match Contributions and, for Plan Years prior to February 3, 2007,
Performance Matching Contributions.

Participant Any Employee who is participating in this Plan. See Section 3.
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Performance Matching Contributions Additional contributions made under the Plan prior to February 3, 2007 with respect to
a Participant’s Salary Deferral Contributions. As described in Section 4(d), effective
for Plan Years beginning on and after February 3, 2007, no Performance Matching
Contributions are made to the Plan.

Plan The Lowe’s 401(k) Plan, which includes the Plan and the Trust Agreement.

Plan Year The calendar year. Prior to February 3, 2007, the Plan Year was the 52-53-week period
ending on each Anniversary Date (and coinciding with the fiscal year of Lowe’s). The
Plan Year shall also be the “limitation year” for purposes of Section 415 of the Code.

Rollover Account The Account which reflects any interest attributable to a direct rollover made on behalf
of an Employee pursuant to Section 4(i), other than a Roth rollover described in
Section 4(i)(i)(A).

Roth Account The Account which reflects any interest attributable to Roth Contributions, other than
Roth rollover contributions (which are reflected in the Roth Rollover Account). See
Section 4(j).

Roth Contributions Salary Deferral Contributions made pursuant to the elections of Participants in
accordance with Section 4(j).

Roth Rollover Account The Account which reflects any interest attributable to a direct rollover of an
Employee's Roth contributions made on behalf of an Employee pursuant to Section
4(i)(i)(A) of the Plan.

Salary Deferral Account The Account which reflects each Participant’s interest attributable to pre-tax Salary
Deferral Contributions.

Salary Deferral Contributions Contributions made pursuant to the elections of Participants. See Section 4(a).

Service Employment with Lowe’s.
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Statutory Compensation The total remuneration paid to an Employee by Lowe’s during the Plan Year for
personal services rendered to Lowe’s, including (i) any Salary Deferral Contributions
contributed on his behalf for the Plan Year, (ii) any salary reductions under the Lowe’s
Companies Flexible Benefit Plan (pursuant to Section 125 of the Code) and (iii) any
salary reductions that are not includible in the gross income of the Employee by reason
of Section l32(f)(4) of the Code, but excluding employer contributions to a plan of
deferred compensation, amounts realized in connection with stock options, amounts
which receive special tax benefits, and except as provided in the immediately
succeeding sentence, amounts paid after the Employee’s severance from employment
with Lowe’s (as defined in Section 1.415(a)-1(f)(5) of the regulations). The following
payments made after severance from employment shall be included in Statutory
Compensation, but only to the extent such amounts are paid by the later of 2½ months
after severance from employment with Lowe’s or the end of the Plan Year that includes
the date of the severance from employment with Lowe’s:

(i)    compensation paid after severance from employment, if the compensation is for
services during the Employee’s regular working hours or compensation for services
outside the Employee’s regular working hours (such as overtime or shift differential),
commissions, bonuses or other similar payments and such compensation that would
have been paid to the Employee prior to a severance from employment if the
Participant had continued in employment with Lowe’s; and
(ii)    payments for unused accrued vacation or holiday pay, but only if the Employee
would have been entitled to use the leave if employment had continued.

TPA The third party administrator designed by the Committee.

Trust The Lowe’s Companies 401(k) Plan Trust, maintained under the Trust Agreement
entered into between Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and the Trustee.

Trust Agreement The Agreement between Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and the Trustee specifying the duties
of the Trustee.

Trust Assets The assets held in the Trust for the benefit of Participants.

Trustee The Trustee (and any successor Trustee) appointed by the Board of Directors to hold
and invest the Trust Assets.
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Section 3
Eligibility and Participation

(a)    Eligibility to Make Salary Deferral Contributions.

(1)    Participants on December 31, 2012. Each Employee who was eligible to participate in the Plan and make Salary

Deferral Contributions as of December 31, 2012, shall continue to be eligible to participate in the Plan and

make Salary Deferral Contributions from and after January 1, 2013.

(2)    On and After January 1, 2013 and prior to May 1, 2019. Each Employee who commences Service on or after

January 1, 2013 shall be eligible to participate in the Plan and make Salary Deferral Contributions as of the

first day of the payroll period coinciding with or next following the date which is six months after such

Employee’s initial date of Service (the date he is first credited with an Hour of Service as defined in Section

3(e)), if he is an Employee on such date.

(3)    On and After May 1, 2019. Subject to Section 3(a)(4) below, each Employee as of May 1, 2019 who is not

eligible to participate in the Plan and make Salary Deferral Contributions, and each Employee who

commences Service on or after May 1, 2019, shall be eligible to participate in the Plan and make Salary

Deferral Contributions as of the first day of the payroll period coinciding with or next following the later of (i)

May 1, 2019 or (ii) the first of the month following the date which is 30 days after such Employee’s initial

date of Service (the date he is first credited with an Hour of Service as defined in Section 3(e)), if he is an

Employee on such date.
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(4)    Minimum Age Requirement. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, effective as of May 1, 2019,

no Employee shall participate in the Plan and make Salary Deferral Contributions prior to the first day of the

payroll period coinciding with or next following the first of the month following the date the Participant

attains age eighteen (18).

An Employee who is not in Service on the date such Employee would otherwise be eligible to participate in the Plan

in accordance with this Section 3(a) shall be eligible to participate in the Plan and make Salary Deferral Contributions

as of the date (if any) he resumes Service as an Employee.

(b)    Eligibility to Receive Company Match Contributions

(1)    Participants on December 31, 2012 – Each Employee who was eligible to participate in the Plan and receive

Company Match Contributions as of December 31, 2012, shall continue to be eligible to participate in the Plan

and receive Company Match Contributions from and after January 1, 2013.

(2)    On and After January 1, 2013 and prior to May 1, 2019 – Each Employee who is not eligible to receive

Company Match Contributions under Section 3(b)(1) shall be eligible to receive Company Match

Contributions with respect to Salary Deferral Contributions made for each payroll period that begins on or

after the date which is six months after such Employee’s initial date of Service (the date he is first credited

with an Hour of Service as defined in Section 3(e)).
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(3)    On and After May 1, 2019. Each Employee on and after May 1, 2019 shall be eligible to receive Company

Match Contributions with respect to Salary Deferral Contributions made on or after May 1, 2019 in

accordance with the eligibility requirements of Section 3(a)(3) and 3(a)(4).

(c)    Eligibility Following Reemployment. A former Employee who is reemployed by Lowe’s and has previously satisfied

the eligibility requirements of Section 3(a) and Section 3(b) shall be eligible to participate as of the date of his reemployment. In the

event such former Employee was a participant in the ESOP prior to the merger of the ESOP into the Plan effective as of September

13, 2002 and terminated employment at a time when the Employee had a non-vested interest in the ESOP, any such non-vested

interest that was forfeited under the terms of the ESOP shall be reinstated and credited to such Employee’s ESOP Account upon such

former Employee’s reemployment.

(d)    L G Sourcing, Inc. and Lowe’s Home Improvement, LLC. An Employee of LG Sourcing, Inc. or Lowe’s Home

Improvement, LLC is eligible to participate in the Plan only if he is employed in the United States or is a United States citizen

employed abroad.

(e)    Hours of Service. For purposes of determining the Hours of Service to be credited to an Employee under Section 3(a)

and Section 3(b), the following rules shall be applied:

(1)    Hours of Service shall generally include each hour of Service for which an Employee is paid (or entitled to
payment) for the performance of duties; each hour of Service for which an employee is paid (or entitled to
payment) for a period during which an Employee is paid (or entitled to payment) for a period during which no
duties are performed due to vacation, holiday, illness, incapacity (including disability), lay-off, jury duty,
military duty or paid leave of absence; and each additional hour of Service for which back pay is either
awarded or agreed to (irrespective of mitigation of damages); provided, however, that no more than 501 Hours
of Service need be credited for one continuous period during which an Employee does not perform duties.
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(2)    The crediting of Hours of Service shall be determined by the Committee in accordance with the rules set forth in
Section 2530.200b-2 of the regulations prescribed by the Department of Labor, which rules shall be
consistently applied with respect to all Employees within the same job classification.

(3)    Hours of Service shall not be credited to an Employee for a period during which no duties are performed if
payment is made or due under a plan maintained solely for the purpose of complying with applicable worker’s
compensation, unemployment compensation or disability insurance laws, and Hours of Service shall not be
credited on account of any payment made or due an Employee solely in reimbursement of medical or
medically-related expenses.

(f)    Election to Make Salary Deferral Contributions. In order to become a Participant, an eligible Employee shall elect to

have Salary Deferral Contributions made by Lowe’s to the Trust on his behalf, as provided in Section 4(a). Salary Deferral

Contributions shall be made, at the eligible Employee’s election, on a pre-tax basis, or pursuant to Section 4(j), as Roth

Contributions. An eligible Employee must make such an election to be eligible to receive Company Match Contributions under

Section 4(c). An eligible Employee may elect to have Salary Deferral Contributions made on his behalf (and become a Participant) at

any time after he has satisfied the requirements of Section 3(a).

(g)    ESOP Eligibility. An eligible Employee who had amounts transferred to the Plan on his behalf from the ESOP is a

Participant in the Plan for the purpose of maintaining his transferred ESOP Account under this Plan.

(h)    Collective Bargaining Agreements. An Employee whose terms and conditions of employment are covered by a

collective bargaining agreement (a “CBA”) shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan unless, and only to the extent that, the

terms of such CBA specifically provide for participation in this Plan. A Participant who subsequently becomes covered under a CBA

shall not be entitled to have Salary Deferral Contributions (or Company Match Contributions) made on his behalf after the date of

his coverage under the CBA, except as may
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otherwise be provided in such CBA. An Employee who ceases to be covered by the terms and conditions of a CBA shall not be

entitled to have Salary Deferral Contributions (or Company Match Contributions) made on his behalf with respect to Compensation

paid for his period of employment covered by the CBA’s terms and conditions, except to the extent that the terms and conditions of

such CBA or operation of law specifically provide otherwise.

An Employee whose terms and conditions of employment are subject to representation by an authorized collective bargaining

representative shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan if coverage is eliminated with the unilateral implementation of a

collective bargaining offer made by Lowe’s after reaching an impasse in negotiations. A Participant who becomes subject to

representation by an authorized collective bargaining representative shall not be entitled to have Salary Deferral Contributions (or

Company Match Contributions) made on his behalf for any period of loss of eligibility due to such unilateral implementation of a

collective bargaining offer made after impasse. An Employee whose loss of eligibility in this Plan was the result of such unilaterally

implemented collective bargaining offer shall not be entitled to have Salary Deferral Contributions (or Company Match

Contributions) made on his behalf with respect to Compensation paid for such period of loss of Plan eligibility, except to the extent

that the unilaterally implemented collective bargaining offer or operation of law specifically provide otherwise.

(i)    Military Service. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service credit

with respect to qualified military service will be provided in accordance with Section 414(u) of the Code.
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Section 4
Contributions

(a)    Salary Deferral Contributions. Subject to the limitations described in this Section 4(a) and in Sections 4(e) and 4(g),

an Employee who is eligible to participate in the Plan may elect to have from 1% to 75% (or such other percentages as may be

determined by the Committee) of his Deferral Compensation withheld by Lowe’s and contributed to the Trust on his behalf in lieu of

his receiving such amount as Compensation; provided, however, that except as otherwise provided in Section 4(b) regarding Catch-

Up Contributions, the amount elected to be withheld may not exceed $22,500 for any calendar year (as adjusted periodically after

2023 for increases in the cost of living pursuant to Section 402(g)(5) of the Code). The Committee may permit Participants to make

such elections (and changes thereof) through any electronic medium designated by the Committee. Salary Deferral Contributions

shall be paid by Lowe’s to the Trustee in cash as soon as practicable, but in no event later than the 15th business day of the month

following the month in which such amounts are withheld from the Participants’ Deferral Compensation. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, the Committee may limit or alter a Highly Compensated Employee’s Salary Deferral Contributions election to facilitate

the Plan’s compliance with applicable Code limitations on contributions in coordination with other employee benefit plans and

programs. Salary Deferral Contributions shall be made, at the eligible Employee’s election, on a pre-tax basis, or pursuant to Section

4(j), as Roth Contributions.

(b)    Catch-Up Contributions. Participants who have attained age fifty (50) before the close of a calendar year (for this

purpose, a Participant who will attain age 50 before the end of a calendar year shall be deemed to be age 50 as of January 1 of such

year) may elect to have the Deferral Compensation payable to the Participant reduced for the purpose of making Catch-
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Up Contributions during such Plan Year in accordance with, and subject to the limitations of, Code Section 414(v) and any

additional limitations, rules and procedures established by the Committee for such purpose. A Participant who makes an election, or

is deemed to have made an election, to reduce his Deferral Compensation under Section 4(a) or 4(j), and who is eligible to make

Catch-Up Contributions in accordance with this Section 4(b), shall be deemed to have elected to make Catch-Up Contributions to

the extent the Participant’s Salary Deferral Contributions (including, if elected, Roth Contributions) made in accordance with the

Participant’s compensation reduction election, or deemed election, under Section 4(a) or 4(j) would exceed the limitation of Code

Section 402(g) or 415. Such Catch-Up Contributions shall not be taken into account for purposes of the provisions of the Plan

implementing the required limitations of Sections 402(g) and 415 of the Code. The Plan shall not be treated as failing to satisfy the

provisions of the Plan implementing the requirements of Section 401(k)(3), 410(b) or 416 of the Code, as applicable, by reason of

the making of such Catch-Up Contributions. Lowe’s shall make a Catch-Up Contribution to the Trust for each Participant whose

Deferral Compensation for a payroll period is reduced pursuant to this Section which contribution shall be credited to an existing

Account or a separate Account as determined by the Committee. The Committee shall establish rules and procedures in accordance

with Code Section 414(v) for the administration of Catch-Up Contributions including when Deferral Compensation reductions

pursuant to Section 4(a) will or may be characterized as Catch-Up Contributions. The Committee also may limit the amount of

Catch-Up Contributions a Participant may make in a period, below the limitations of Code Section 414(v), to further the orderly

administration of the Plan.
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(c)    Company Match Contributions . Subject to the limitations described in this Section 4(c) and in Sections 4(f) and 4(g),

Lowe’s will make Company Match Contributions to the Trust for each payroll period on behalf of each Participant who meets the

eligibility requirements of Section 3(b) and who elects to have Salary Deferral Contributions made to the Plan on his behalf during

such payroll period. Such Company Match Contributions for each payroll period shall be in an amount equal to (i) 100% of the first

3% of Deferral Compensation each Participant elects to have contributed to the Plan on his behalf as Salary Deferral Contributions

during the payroll period, plus (ii) 50% of the next 2% of Deferral Compensation he elects to have contributed to the Plan on his

behalf as Salary Deferral Contributions during the payroll period, plus (iii) 25% of the next 1% of Deferral Compensation he elects

to have contributed to the Plan on his behalf as Salary Deferral Contributions during the payroll period. A Participant’s Salary

Deferral Contributions in excess of 6% of his Deferral Compensation during a payroll period will not be matched under this

Section 4(c). Lowe’s will make Company Match Contributions based on Participant Catch-Up Contributions to the same extent

Company Match Contributions are made based on Salary Deferral Contributions as described in this Section.

(d)    Performance Matching Contributions. No Performance Matching Contributions will be made to the Plan for any

Plan Participant for Plan Years beginning on and after February 3, 2007.

(e)    Nondiscrimination Rules Applicable to Salary Deferral Contributions. The provisions of this Section 4(e) shall not

apply, and the actual deferral percentage testing requirements of Code Sections 401(k)(3) shall not apply, with respect to any Plan

Year in which Lowe’s makes safe harbor matching contributions or safe harbor nonelective contributions to the

15



Plan on behalf of eligible Plan Participants and otherwise satisfies the requirements of Code Section 401(k)(12). For any Plan Year

in which the Plan does not satisfy the safe harbor plan requirements of Code Section 401(k)(12), the Committee shall limit the

Salary Deferral Contributions for Highly Compensated Employees to the extent necessary so that the actual deferral percentage for

Highly Compensated Employees bears a relationship to the actual deferral percentage for all other Employees who are eligible to

participate in the Plan which meets either of the following tests:
(1)    The actual deferral percentage for the Highly Compensated Employees is not more than 1.25 times the actual

deferral percentage for all other Employees.

(2)    The excess of the actual deferral percentage for the Highly Compensated Employees over that of all other
Employees is not more than two percentage points, and the actual deferral percentage for the Highly
Compensated Employees is not more than two times the actual deferral percentage for all other Employees.

Such deferral percentages for Employees other than Highly Compensated Employees shall be determined based upon the

“current Plan Year testing method” as provided under Treasury Regulation 1.401(k)-2(a)(2). A Participant’s actual deferral

percentage shall be calculated by dividing his Salary Deferral Contributions for the Plan Year by his Compensation for such Plan

Year. A bonus shall be considered to be Compensation in the Plan Year in which the bonus is paid to the Participant.

For purposes of satisfying the above test, the Committee may direct the Trustee to distribute a portion of the Salary Deferral

Contributions made on behalf of a Highly Compensated Employee (and any earnings thereon) that are determined to be “excess

contributions” within the meaning of Section 1.40(k)-2(b)(2) of the regulations. If possible, such distributions shall be made within

two and one-half (2½) months after the close of the Plan Year in which the excess contribution occurred (to avoid excise taxes), but,

in any event, such
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distributions shall be made by no later than the close of the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which the excess contribution

occurred. Such “excess contributions” shall be determined by reducing Salary Deferral Contributions made on behalf of Highly

Compensated Employees in order of actual contribution amounts beginning with the highest of such actual contribution amounts.

The actual deferral percentage of the Highly Compensated Employee with the highest such contribution amount shall be reduced

until it equals that of the Highly Compensated Employee with the next highest contribution amount. This process shall be repeated

until one of the above tests is passed. The amount of excess contributions to be distributed under this paragraph shall be reduced by

any excess deferrals previously distributed under the following paragraph for the calendar year ending in the Plan Year.

If during a calendar year a Participant participates in more than one qualified cash or deferred arrangement described in

Section 401(k) of the Code and he notifies the Committee no later than the March 1  following that calendar year that all or a

specified portion of the Salary Deferral Contributions made on his behalf for that calendar year should be paid to him (together with

any income attributable thereto) because such Salary Deferral Contributions constitute “excess deferrals,” as described in

Section 402(g)(2)(A) of the Code, distribution of such amounts to him shall occur no later than the April 15  following that calendar

year. Excess deferrals to be distributed under this paragraph shall be reduced by the excess contributions previously distributed under

the preceding paragraph for the Plan Year beginning in such calendar year.

Earnings attributable to “excess” Salary Deferral Contributions or “excess deferrals” that are required to be distributed in

accordance with this Section 4(e) shall include earnings for the

st

th
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period between the end of the Plan Year and the date of distribution only to the extent required by Sections 401(k) and 401(g) of the

Code and the regulations thereunder.

(f)    Nondiscrimination Rules Applicable to Matching Contributions. The provisions of this Section 4(f) shall not apply,

and the actual contribution percentage testing requirements of Code Section 401(m)(2) shall not apply, with respect to any Plan Year

in which Lowe’s makes safe harbor matching contributions or safe harbor nonelective contributions to the Plan on behalf of eligible

Plan Participants and otherwise satisfies the requirements of Code Section 401(m)(11). For any Plan Year in which the Plan does not

satisfy the safe harbor plan requirements of Code Section 401(m)(11), Company Match Contributions for Highly Compensated

Employees shall be limited by the Committee for any Plan Year to the extent necessary to satisfy one of the contribution percentage

requirements described in Section 40l(m)(2) of the Code and Section 1.401(m)-1(b) of the regulations thereunder.

Such contribution percentages for Employees other than Highly Compensated Employees shall be determined based upon the

“current Plan Year testing method” as provided under Treasury Regulation 1.401(m)-2(a)(2). A Participant’s actual contribution

percentage shall be calculated by dividing his Company Match Contributions for the Plan Year by his Compensation for such Plan

Year. A bonus shall be considered to be compensation in the Plan Year in which the bonus is paid to the Participant.

The Committee may direct the Trustee to distribute a portion of the Company Match Contributions made on behalf of a

Highly Compensated Employee (and any earnings thereon) to the Highly Compensated Employee that are determined to be “excess

aggregate contributions” within the meaning of Section 1.401(m)-2(b)(2) of the regulations. If possible, such distributions shall be

made within two and one-half (2-½) months after the close of the Plan Year in which the
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excess contribution occurred (to avoid excise taxes), but, in any event, such distributions shall be made by no later than the close of

the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which the excess contribution occurred. Such “excess aggregate contributions” shall be

determined in order of actual contribution amounts beginning with the highest of such contribution amounts. The actual contribution

amount of the Highly Compensated Employee with the highest such amount shall be reduced until it equals that of the Highly

Compensated Employee with the next highest amount. This process shall be repeated until one of the tests described in

Section 401(m)(2) of the Code is passed.

Earnings attributable to “excess” Company Match Contributions that are required to be distributed in accordance with this

Section 4(f) shall include earnings for the period between the end of the Plan Year and the date of distribution to the extent required

by Section 401(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder.

(g)    Limitations on Contributions. Contributions will not be made for a Plan Year in amounts which cannot be allocated to

a Participant’s Accounts by reason of the allocation limitation described in Section 6(b) (and, for this purpose, the Committee may

adjust the amount that a Participant elects to have withheld from time to time in order to ensure that such limit is not exceeded) or in

amounts which are not deductible under Section 404(a) of the Code. A Participant who receives a hardship withdrawal under Section

10(a) prior to January 1, 2019 will not have any Salary Deferral Contributions, Catch-Up Contributions or Company Match

Contributions made on his behalf for a period of six months following the withdrawal, as provided in Section 10(a), and during such

period, any amount that the Participant previously elected to have withheld pursuant to Section 4(a) shall be paid to him as

Compensation. A Participant’s eligibility for having Salary Deferral Contributions, Catch-Up Contributions and
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Company Match Contributions made on his behalf shall not be suspended on account of the Participant’s receipt of a hardship

distribution under Section 10(a) on or after January 1, 2019.

(h)    Return of Contributions. Any Contributions, or Catch-Up Contributions, which are not deductible under Section

404(a) of the Code shall be returned to Lowe’s by the Trustee (upon the direction of the Committee) within one year after the

deduction is disallowed or after it is determined that the deduction is not available. In the event that Contributions, or Catch-Up

Contributions, are paid to the Trust by reason of a mistake of fact, such contributions shall be returned to Lowe’s by the Trustee

(upon the direction of the Committee) within one year after the payment to the Trust.

(i)    Rollover Contributions. Subject to such administrative terms and conditions as may be established from time to time

by the Committee, the Trustee shall accept a rollover contribution (as described below) to the Plan by or on behalf of an Employee

who is in the class of Employees eligible to participate in the Plan, even if such Employee has not yet satisfied the eligibility

requirement of Section 3(a) of the Plan, provided that such contribution constitutes an “eligible rollover distribution” under Section

401(a)(31) of the Code. In this regard:
(i)    The Plan will accept a direct rollover of a distribution made to the Plan on behalf of such an Employee from (A)

a qualified plan described in Section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code, including after-tax employee contributions
and Roth Contributions, (B) an annuity contract described in Section 403(b) of the Code, excluding after-tax
employee contributions, or (C) an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the Code that is maintained by a state,
political subdivision of a state, or an agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state. The
Plan will only accept a rollover contribution to a Roth Rollover Account if it is directly from another Roth
elective deferral account under an applicable retirement plan described in Code Section 402A(e)(1) and only
to the extent the rollover is permitted under the rules of Code Section 402(c).

(ii)    The Plan will accept a contribution from such an Employee of an eligible rollover distribution from (A) a
qualified plan described in Section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code, (B) an annuity contract described in Section
403(b) of the Code, or (C) an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the Code that is maintained by a state,
political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state.
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(iii)    The Plan will accept a rollover contribution from such an Employee of the portion of a distribution from an
individual retirement account or annuity described in Section 408(a) or 408(b) of the Code that is eligible to
be rolled over and would otherwise be includible in gross income.

Any rollover contributions to the Plan by or on behalf of such an Employee, other than a direct rollover of an Employee's

Roth contributions pursuant to Section 4(i)(i)(A), shall be credited to a separate Rollover Account for the Employee and shall be

invested and administered as directed by the Employee. A direct rollover on behalf of such an Employee of Roth contributions

pursuant to Section 4(i)(i)(A) shall be credited to a separate Roth Rollover Account for the Employee and shall in invested and

administered as directed by the Employee. Rollover contributions made to the Plan by or on behalf of an Employee will not

constitute Annual Additions under Section 6(b) of the Plan. An Employee will at all times have a 100% vested (nonforfeitable)

interest in the balance in his Rollover Account and Roth Rollover Account.

(j)    Roth Contributions. Effective for the pay period beginning April 3, 2021 and thereafter, the Plan will accept Roth

Contributions made on behalf of Participants. A Roth Contribution is a Salary Deferral Contribution that is (i) an elective deferral

designated irrevocably by the Participant at the time of the cash or deferred election as a Roth Contribution that is being made in lieu

of all or a portion of the pre-tax Salary Deferral Contributions the Participant is otherwise eligible to make under the Plan, subject to

the same limitations in combination with such pre-tax Salary Deferral Contributions, and (ii) treated by Lowe’s as includible in the

Participant’s income at the time the Participant would have received that amount in cash if the Participant had not made a cash or

deferred election. Contributions and withdrawals of Roth Contributions will be credited and debited to the Roth Account maintained

for each Participant. The Plan will maintain a record of the amount of Roth Contributions in each Participant’s Roth Account. Gains,

losses, and other credits or charges shall be separately
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allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to each Participant’s Roth Account and the Participant’s other Accounts under the

Plan. No contributions other than Roth Contributions and properly attributable earnings will be credited to each Participant’s Roth

Account.

A Participant may elect to receive a withdrawal from the Participant’s Roth Account subject to the same conditions and

restrictions applicable to in-service withdrawals from the Participant’s Salary Deferral Account under Section 10. The Committee

shall establish rules and procedures applicable to the making and distribution of Roth Contributions that are not inconsistent with the

provisions of this Section 4(j).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may not elect Roth Contributions under the Plan after January 1 of a Plan Year

if the Participant has made the irrevocable election to participate in the Lowe’s Companies Benefit Restoration Plan (the “BRP”) for

that Plan Year. Participants of the BRP may elect to make Roth Contributions under this Plan, but such election must be made prior

to or contemporaneous with the Participant’s irrevocable election to participate in the BRP for a specific Plan Year, and the election

to make Roth Contributions is irrevocable during the Plan Year in which the Participant is also participating in the BRP. Regardless

of BRP participation, a Participant is eligible to roll over Roth deferrals to the Roth Rollover Account in accordance with Section

4(i)(i).
Section 5

Investment of Trust Assets

Trust Assets under the Plan attributable to Salary Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts, Rollover Accounts, Roth Rollover

Accounts, Matching Accounts, ESOP Diversification Accounts and ESOP Accounts shall be invested by the Trustee as directed by

Participants in the investment funds (and options) available under the Plan as set forth below. If a Participant elects
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to diversify his ESOP Account from Lowe’s Stock to another investment available under the Plan, such investment shall continue to

be part of the Participant’s ESOP Account.

Trust Assets under the Plan attributable to a Participant’s Accounts will be invested by the Trustee as directed by Participants

in a fund consisting of Lowe’s Stock (the “Lowe’s Stock Fund”) and in such other investment funds (and options) as the Committee

shall from time to time make available, such as a mutual fund or any other type of fund that is managed by a professional fund

manager. The Committee shall make available from time to time no less than three investment options, or such other number of

investment options required to comply with Code Section 401(a)(35), in addition to Lowe’s Stock which investment options will be

diversified and have materially different risk and return characteristics. The Committee shall not make available any investment fund

with respect to which the Committee has investment responsibility. In the event an offer is received by the Trustee (including but not

limited to a tender offer or exchange within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Trustee shall act

pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement.

Each Participant shall bear the sole responsibility for the investment of his Accounts, and neither the Committee nor the

Trustee shall have any responsibility or liability for any losses that may occur in connection with such investment.

From among the investment funds made available by the Committee, each Participant shall select the fund or funds in which

his Accounts will be invested in increments (such as 1%) that the Committee may permit. All investment elections may be changed

on a daily basis. Participants shall also be permitted to change their investment elections on a daily basis with respect to the

previously accumulated balances of their Accounts in increments (such as 1%) as the Committee shall from time to time permit.

Investment elections by Participants under this
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Section 5 shall be made in accordance with rules and procedures established by the Committee and shall be subject to such

reasonable guidelines and limitations as the Committee shall deem to be appropriate for the efficient administration of the Plan. The

Committee may provide that investment elections by Participants under this Section 5 may be made through any electronic medium

designated by the Committee.

Effective on and after May 1, 2019, each Participant may elect to invest up to a maximum of twenty-five percent (25%) of

Contributions made by him or on his behalf (such limitation to apply to all Contributions without regard to any distinction between

Company Match Contributions and Salary Deferral Contributions) in the Lowe’s Stock Fund in accordance with this Section 5. Such

a Participant may also elect to transfer amounts, from his Accounts held in investment alternatives other than the Lowe’s Stock

Fund, to the Lowe’s Stock Fund in accordance with this Section 5; provided, however, that no such transfer shall be implemented to

the extent that the transfer would cause the value of the Participant’s interest in the Lowe’s Stock Fund held under the Plan to exceed

twenty-five percent (25%) of the value of his interest in all investment alternatives held under the Plan. Notwithstanding the

preceding sentence, neither Lowe’s nor the Committee, nor any representative of Lowe’s, the Committee or of the Plan shall have

any obligation to monitor the value of a Participant’s interest in the Lowe’s Stock Fund, or to manage said fund, and no person shall

or shall have any authority to dispose of any Participant’s interest in the Lowe’s Stock Fund except in accordance with a Participant’s

valid election or otherwise in accordance with express provisions of this Plan.

All Lowe’s Stock in the Trust shall be voted by the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5. Each

Participant (and Beneficiary) will be entitled to instruct the Trustee as to the manner in which shares of Lowe’s Stock then allocated

to his Lowe’s Stock
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Fund will be voted. Each Participant (and Beneficiary) who is so entitled shall be provided with the proxy statement and other

materials provided to Lowe’s shareholders in connection with each shareholder meeting, together with a form upon which voting

instructions may be given to the Trustee. Any shares of Lowe’s Stock with respect to which voting instructions are not received from

Participants shall be voted in the manner determined by the Committee. The Committee shall apply similar procedures with respect

to a tender offer for Lowe’s Stock.
Section 6

Allocations to Participants’ Accounts

(a)    Allocations to Accounts. The Salary Deferral Account, Roth Account, Matching Account and Catch-Up Account

maintained for each Participant will be credited throughout each Plan Year with Salary Deferral Contributions, Roth Contributions,

Company Match Contributions, and Catch-Up Contributions respectively made on a Participant’s behalf pursuant to Sections 4(a),

(b), (c) and (j) of the Plan. Each Participant’s Account will also be credited throughout each Plan Year with the net income (or loss)

attributable to the investment of the Account. The net income (or loss) includes the increase (or decrease) in the fair market value of

the assets in which an Account is invested, interest income, dividends and other income and gains (or loss), reduced by any expenses

charged to the Account. Each Participant shall at all times have a 100% vested (nonforfeitable) interest in the balances of his

Accounts. The net income (or loss) of the Trust for each Plan Year will be determined and allocated on a daily basis separately for

each Participant’s Account based upon his investments.

(b)    Allocation Limitation. Except to the extent permitted under Section 4(b) and 4(i) of the Plan and Section 414(v) of the

Code, for each Plan Year, the “Annual Additions” with respect to any Participant may not exceed the lesser of:

(1)    100% of his Statutory Compensation; or
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(2)    $66,000 as adjusted for increases after 2023 in the cost of living pursuant to Section 415(d)(l)(C) of the Code.

For purposes of this Section 6(b), “Annual Additions” shall be the total amount of all Contributions allocated to the Accounts

of a Participant for the Plan Year. Annual Additions shall include any Salary Deferral Contributions distributed to the Participant as

“excess contributions” under Section 4(e) but shall not include any Salary Deferral Contributions distributed to the Participants as

“excess deferrals” under Section 4(e) or paid to the Participant pursuant to the following paragraph.

If the amount that would be allocated to the Accounts of a Participant in the absence of this limitation would exceed the

amount set forth in this limitation, this limitation will be applied to reduce the Participant’s share of Salary Deferral Contributions

and Company Match Contributions proportionately. The Committee will direct the Trustee to return the Salary Deferral

Contributions (including earnings thereon) to the Participant as Compensation. Any reduction in Company Match Contributions

pursuant to this Section will be credited against the amount of Company Match Contributions to be made by Lowe’s for the payroll

period following the reduction.

(c)    ESOP Diversification. In order to satisfy the diversification requirement of Section 401(a)(28)(B) of the Code, prior to

September 13, 2002, Section 14(b) of the ESOP permitted certain members of the ESOP to elect to have a portion of their “Lowe’s

Stock Accounts” under the ESOP transferred to the Plan. Any amounts that were so transferred on behalf of an Employee were

credited to an ESOP Diversification Account established for him and did not constitute an Annual Addition under Section 6(b).

ESOP Diversification Accounts that were established prior to September 13, 2002 shall continue to be maintained after such date.

The net income (or loss) attributable to the investment of the ESOP Diversification Account will

26



be credited as provided in Section 6(a). Each Participant shall at all times have a 100% vested (nonforfeitable) interest in the balance

of his ESOP Diversification Account.
Section 7

Expenses of the Plan and Trust

All expenses of administering the Plan and Trust, including all reasonable expenses of the Committee, shall be paid by

Lowe’s to the extent not charged to Participant (or former Employee) Accounts or otherwise paid by the Plan; provided, however,

that any expenses applicable to, or charged by, an investment fund shall be charged to, and paid from, that investment fund or the

Accounts invested in that investment fund and shall not be charged to, or paid by, Lowe’s. The payment of expenses by Lowe’s shall

not be deemed to be Contributions. Active and former Employee Accounts may be assessed fees to the extent permitted by ERISA

and the Code.
Section 8

Disclosure to Participants

(a)    Summary Plan Description. Each Participant shall be furnished with the summary plan description of the Plan, as

required by Sections 102(a)(1) and 104(b)(l) of ERISA, which may include electronic publication. Such summary plan description

shall be updated from time to time as required under ERISA and U.S. Department of Labor regulations thereunder.

(b)    Summary Annual Report. Within two months after the due date for filing the annual return/report (Form 5500) for the

Plan, each Participant shall be furnished with the summary annual report of the Plan required by Section 104(b)(3) of ERISA, in the

form prescribed in regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor, which may include electronic publication.
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(c)    Statement of Account. At least once per calendar quarter, each Participant shall be furnished with a statement reflecting

the following information which may be provided electronically:
(1)    The balances (if any) in his Accounts and in each investment as of the beginning of the period for which the

statement has been prepared.

(2)    The amounts of Contributions (or amounts described in Section 4(i) regarding rollover contributions (including
Roth rollover contributions)) and net income (or loss) allocated to his Accounts for the period for which the
statement has been prepared.

(3)    The new balances in his Accounts and in each investment as of the last day of the period for which the statement
has been prepared.

(4)    Information regarding the Department of Labor internet website providing information on investing and
diversification.

(5)    An explanation of any limitations or restrictions on the Participant’s right to direct the investment of his
Accounts.

(6)    A statement regarding the importance of a well-balanced and diversified investment portfolio and the risk of
holding more than 20% of a portfolio in a single entity.

(d)    Additional Disclosure. The Committee shall make available for examination by any Participant copies of the Plan, the

Trust Agreement and the latest annual report of the Plan filed (on Form 5500) for the Plan. Upon written request of any Participant,

the Committee shall furnish copies of such documents, and may make a reasonable charge to cover the cost of furnishing such

copies, as provided in regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor. The Committee shall also deliver to each Participant copies of

prospectuses and other documents that may be required by Federal or state securities laws to be provided in connection with his

selection of the investment fund or funds in which his Accounts will be invested.
Section 9

Distribution of Capital Accumulation

(a)    General. A Participant’s Capital Accumulation will be computed following the termination of his Service by reason of

his retirement, disability, death, resignation or discharge.
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His Capital Accumulation shall be distributed in a single distribution as soon as practicable following his termination of Service,

subject to the Participant’s consent to distribution as described in Section 9(f) below. The portion of a Participant’s Accounts that is

not invested in Lowe’s Stock shall be distributed in cash. The portion of a Participant’s Accounts that is invested in Lowe’s Stock

shall be distributed in cash or in whole shares of such stock (with the value of any fractional shares distributed in cash), as

determined by the Participant (unless the Participant fails to provide the Trustee with directions regarding such shares, in which case

such portion of a Participant’s Accounts shall be distributed in cash). For purposes of determining the amount of any cash

distribution, the value of Lowe’s Stock or any other security for which there is a generally recognized market shall be the closing

price of such security on the trading day coinciding with the date that the distribution is processed. Distributions from the Trust shall

be made by the Trustee only as directed by the Committee or by a TPA. Distribution shall be made to the Participant if living, and if

not, to his Beneficiary.

(b)    Beneficiaries. Effective from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2022 in the event of a Participant’s death, his

Beneficiary shall be his surviving spouse, or if none, his estate. Effective as of January 1, 2023 in the event of a Participant’s death,

his Beneficiary shall be Participant’s surviving spouse, or if none, Participant’s descendent, in equal shares, or if none, Participant’s

ascendents, in equal shares, or if none, Participants estate. A Participant (with the notarized written consent of his spouse, if any)

may designate a different Beneficiary or Beneficiaries from time to time, and may change such designation at any time, by filing a

written designation with the Committee. A deceased Participant’s entire Capital Accumulation shall be distributed to his Beneficiary

on or before the December 31st of the calendar year that includes the fifth anniversary of his death.
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(c)    Latest Distribution Date. Effective January 1, 2023 with respect to any Participant who attained age 70½ after

December 31, 2019, the distribution of the Capital Accumulation of any Participant who attains age 72 in a calendar year and either

(1) has terminated Service or (2) is a “5% owner” of Lowe’s Stock (as defined in Section 416(i)(1)(B)(i) of the Code) must occur not

later than April 1  of the next calendar year and must be made in accordance with the regulations under Section 401(a)(9) of the

Code, including Section 1.401(a)(9)-2.

(d)    Automatic Cashout and Mandatory Rollover. If a terminated Participant’s vested Capital Accumulation (excluding

any amount in a Rollover Account, but including any amount in a Roth Rollover Account) does not exceed $5,000, the Participant’s

vested Capital Accumulation shall be distributed in accordance with this paragraph (d).

If a terminated Participant’s vested Capital Accumulation (including any amount in any Rollover Account) does not exceed

$1,000, unless the Participant elects to have such distribution paid directly to an “eligible retirement plan” in a direct rollover as

provided in Section 9(g), the Participant’s vested Capital Accumulation shall be distributed to the Participant or the Participant’s

Beneficiary as soon as administratively practicable following the Participant’s separation from Service. If the distribution of a

terminated Participant’s vested Capital Accumulation is subject to this paragraph and, including any amount in any Rollover

Account, exceeds $1,000, unless the Participant elects to receive the distribution directly, the Participant’s vested Capital

Accumulation shall be distributed in a direct rollover to an individual retirement plan designated by the Participant, or if the

Participant fails to make such designation, by the Committee. For purposes of determining whether a direct rollover to an individual

retirement plan is required, amounts within Roth and Roth Rollover Accounts are considered separately

st
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from the Participant’s other non-Roth Accounts in determining whether the total amount of the Participant’s Capital Accumulation

exceeds $1,000 (should a Participant’s non-Roth Accounts exceed $1,000 while a Participant’s Roth and Roth Rollover Accounts

total less than $1,000, only the Participant’s non-Roth Account balances are subject to a direct rollover to an individual retirement

plan in the absence of an affirmative election by the Participant to receive a cash distribution or elect a rollover).

(e)    Special Tax Notice and Withholding. Lowe’s or the TPA shall furnish the recipient of a distribution with the tax

consequences explanation required by Section 402(f) of the Code and shall comply with the withholding requirements of

Section 3405 of the Code with respect to all distributions from the Trust. Such explanation may be provided through any electronic

medium designated by the Committee so long as such explanation is no less comprehensible to a Participant than a written document

and is reasonably accessible to the Participant.

(f)    Participant Consent to Distribution. If a Participant’s Capital Accumulation (excluding any amount in any Rollover

Account, but including any amount in a Roth Rollover Account) exceeds $5,000, his Capital Accumulation shall not be distributed to

him without his consent. For this purpose, a Participant’s consent may be provided by him through any electronic medium

designated by the Committee.

(g)    Eligibility for Rollover. If a distribution of a Participant’s Capital Accumulation is an “eligible rollover distribution”,

the Committee or the TPA shall notify the Participant (or any spouse or former spouse who is his alternate payee under a “qualified

domestic relations order” (as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code) of his right to elect to have the “eligible rollover distribution”

paid directly to an “eligible retirement plan.” An “eligible rollover
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distribution” is a distribution that is neither (1) one of a series of annual installments over a period of ten years or more, nor (2) the

minimum amount required to be distributed pursuant to Section 401(a)(9) of the Code, nor (3) any amount that is distributed on

account of financial hardship. An “eligible retirement plan” is one of the following plans that accepts “eligible rollover distributions”

and agrees to separately account for amounts transferred into such plan from this Plan: (1) an individual retirement account

described in Section 408(a) of the Code, (2) an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code, (3) a qualified

trust described in Section 401(a) of the Code, (4) a qualified annuity plan described in Section 403(a) of the Code, (5) an annuity

contract described in Section 403(b) of the Code, (6) an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the Code which is maintained by a

state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state, or (7) a Roth IRA

described in Code Section 408A(b), the terms of which permit the acceptance of a direct rollover from a qualified plan. If such an

“eligible rollover distribution” is to be made to the Participant’s surviving spouse or alternate payee under a qualified domestic

relations order, the Committee or the TPA shall notify the surviving spouse or alternate payee of his right to elect to have the

distribution paid directly to an “eligible retirement plan.” Any election under this Section 9(g) shall be made and effected in

accordance with such rules and procedures as may be established from time to time by the Committee in order to comply with

Section 401(a)(31) of the Code. A non-spouse beneficiary who is a “designated beneficiary” under Code Section 401(a)(9)(E) and

the regulations thereunder may elect a direct rollover, of all or any portion of an eligible rollover distribution within the meaning of

Code Section 402(c)(4) to such non-spouse beneficiary, to an individual retirement account established for this purpose. A non-

spouse beneficiary who receives a distribution from the Plan is not eligible for a 60-day rollover. The portion of a
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Participant's Capital Accumulation distribution consisting of after-tax contributions which are not includible in income shall be

eligible for a direct rollover to an individual retirement account or annuity described in Section 408(a) or (b) of the Code, to a

qualified defined contribution plan described in Section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code, to a defined benefit plan described in Section

401(a) or 403(a) of the Code or to an annuity contract described in Code Section 403(b); provided that the account or plan agrees to

account separately for amounts so transferred, including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which is

includible in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is not so includible in gross income. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, a direct rollover of a distribution from a Roth Account or Roth Rollover Account under the Plan will be made only to

another Roth elective deferral account under an applicable retirement plan described in Code Section 402A(e)(1) or to a Roth IRA

described in Code Section 402(c).

(h)    Forfeiture of Account. If a Participant has terminated Service and the Committee is unable after a reasonable period of

time, as determined by the Committee, to locate the Participant or Beneficiary to whom an Account is distributable after making

reasonable efforts to do so, then the Committee may declare the Account to be a forfeiture. All forfeitures shall be applied to reduce

Company Match Contributions. If the Committee at any time is able to locate such Participant, then his forfeited Accounts shall be

restored as if there had been no forfeiture. Such restoration shall be made out of forfeitures occurring in the Plan Year the Participant

is located. To the extent such forfeitures are not sufficient, special Employer contributions shall be made in order to restore the

Participant’s Accounts. Any amount so restored to a Participant shall not constitute an Annual Addition under Section 6(b).
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(i)    Distribution to Alternate Payee. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, a qualified domestic relations

order, as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code, may provide that any amount to be distributed to an alternate payee may be

distributed immediately in a single lump sum payment even though the Participant is not yet entitled to a distribution under the Plan.

The intent of this Section 9(i) is to provide for the distribution of benefits to an alternate payee as permitted under Treasury

Regulations Section 1.401(a)-13(g)(3).

Section 10
In-Service Distributions

(a)    Hardship Withdrawals. A Participant who is still employed by Lowe’s shall be entitled to request a hardship

withdrawal of all or a portion of his Salary Deferral Account, Rollover Account, Roth Rollover Account, ESOP Diversification

Account, Catch-Up Contribution Account, or Roth Account; provided, however, that any earnings attributable to his Salary Deferral

Account, Roth Account or Catch-Up Contribution Account may not be withdrawn, and the minimum hardship withdrawal

permissible shall be $1,000. An application for a withdrawal by a Participant may be made through any electronic medium

designated by the Committee. The Committee or TPA shall approve a request for a withdrawal and its actions thereon shall be final.

A Participant's hardship withdrawal will be made from his Accounts in the following order: (1) the balance of any Rollover Account

(or Roth Rollover Account, if applicable); (2) the balance of his ESOP Diversification Account; and (3) the balance of the Salary

Deferral Account (which includes Catch-Up Contributions, if any). A withdrawal made under this Section 10(a) shall not be

considered an "eligible rollover distribution" (as described in Section 9(g) of the Plan and defined in Section 402(c)(4) of the Code).

Such a withdrawal shall be available only if necessary on account of:
(1)    expenses for medical care described in Section 213(d) of the Code previously incurred by the Participant, his

spouse or his dependents (as

34



defined in Section 152 of the Code) or necessary for these persons to obtain such medical care;

(2)    payment of tuition, related educational fees and room and board expenses for the next 12 months of post-
secondary education for the Participant, his spouse, his children or his dependents;

(3)    cost directly related to the purchase of a principal residence for the Participant (excluding mortgage payments);

(4)    for prevention of eviction of the Participant from his principal residence or foreclosure on the mortgage of his
principal residence;

(5)    payments for burial or funeral expenses for the Participant’s deceased parent, spouse, children or dependents;

(6)    expenses for the repair of damage to the Participant’s principal residence that would qualify for the casualty
deduction under Code Section 165; or

(7)    any other “safe harbor” situations of financial hardship provided in Internal Revenue Service regulations or
rulings under Section 401(k) of the Code.

In determining the amount which is necessary to meet such financial needs of the Participant, the Committee shall make the

following findings:
(1)    the distribution requested by the Participant is not in excess of the amount of the immediate and heavy financial

need of the Participant, which amount may include any amounts necessary to pay any Federal, state or local
income taxes or penalties reasonably anticipated to result from the distribution;

(2)    the Participant has obtained all distributions (other than hardship distributions) and the Participant must
withdraw the entire balance of his ESOP Account (as permitted under Section 10(c)) prior to withdrawing any
Salary Deferral Contributions; and

(3)    prior to January 1, 2019, the Participant has agreed that during the six-month period commencing upon the
approval of the hardship withdrawal, no Salary Deferral Contributions, Catch-Up Contributions and Company
Match Contributions will be made on his behalf under Sections 4(a), (b) and (c) of the Plan, no employee
contributions will be made on his behalf under the Lowe’s Stock Purchase Plan, and the Participant’s elective
and employee contributions to any other qualified and non-qualified plans (other than health or welfare plans)
maintained by Lowe’s shall be suspended for such period. Effective as of January 1, 2019, no such suspension
of any contributions to this or any other plan maintained by Lowe’s shall be required, or continued if already
suspended prior to January 1, 2019, due to any hardship distribution.
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(b)    Age 59½ and Disability Withdrawals. Effective as of January 1, 2020, an Employee who is a Participant may request

a full or partial distribution from the Participant’s Capital Accumulation once per Plan Year after he attains age 59½. An Employee

who is a Participant may request a one-time withdrawal of his entire Capital Accumulation after he incurs a disability. For purposes

of this Section 10(b), ‘disability” shall mean a disability for which the Employee has been determined by the Social Security

Administration to be entitled to Social Security disability income benefits. An application for a withdrawal by an eligible Participant

under this Section 10(b) may be made through any electronic medium designated by the Committee. A Participant who receives a

withdrawal under this Section 10(b) shall continue to participate in the Plan

(c)    One-Time Withdrawals from ESOP Accounts. A Participant in active Service who has attained the twentieth

anniversary of the Participant’s initial date of Service (even if not continuously in Service during such twenty years) shall be entitled

to withdraw up to 50% of his ESOP Account. An eligible Participant shall be permitted to make only one such withdrawal. An

application for a withdrawal by an eligible Participant under this Section 10(c) may be made through any electronic medium

designated by the Committee.

(d)    Cash Dividends. If so determined by the Board of Directors, any cash dividends received by the Trustee on Lowe’s

Stock in the Lowe’s Stock Fund may be paid currently (or within 90 days after the Anniversary Date of the Plan Year in which the

dividends are paid to the Trust) in cash by the Trustee to the Participants (or their Beneficiaries) whose Accounts are invested in the

Lowe’s Stock Fund on a nondiscriminatory basis. Lowe’s may pay such dividends directly to such Participants (or Beneficiaries), or

such dividends may be reinvested in the Participants’ Accounts. If Participants are given the option to elect a distribution of cash
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dividends, then the Participants shall also be given a reasonable period of time (approximately 30 days) to notify the Committee

whether they wish to take such distribution, and if a Participant so notifies the Committee within the prescribed period of time, then

such dividends shall be distributed to such Participant. Such distribution (if any) of cash dividends and the option to elect either a

distribution of cash dividends or reinvestment of dividends may be limited to Participants who are still Employees or may be

applicable to dividends paid on all shares allocated to all Participants’ Accounts, as determined by the Board of Directors, or its

delegate.

(e)    Availability of In-Service Distributions to Alternate Payees. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan to the

contrary, the in-service distribution provisions contained in Sections 10(a), (b) and (c) of the Plan shall not be available to alternate

payees under qualified domestic relations orders.

(f)    Distributions to Qualified Reservists. Pursuant to Code Section 401(k)(2)(B)(i)(V), an individual who is a member of

a reserve component who is called to active duty either for a period in excess of 179 days or for an indefinite period of time may

elect to receive a “qualified reservist distribution” as defined in Code Section 72(t)(2)(G)(iii) which distribution shall not be subject

to the otherwise applicable 10-percent excise tax of Code Section 72(t)(1) on early distributions.
Section 11

No Assignment of Benefits

A Participant’s Account balances under the Plan may not be anticipated, assigned (either at law or in equity), alienated or

subject to attachment, garnishment, levy, execution or other legal or equitable process, except in accordance with (i) a “qualified

domestic relations order” (as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code); (ii) a federal tax levy or collection by IRS on a judgment

resulting from an unpaid tax assessment; or (iii) a judgment or settlement described in
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Section 401(a)(13)(C) of the Code. Any attempt by a Participant (or Beneficiary) to assign or alienate his interest under the Plan, or

any attempt to subject his interest to attachment, execution, garnishment or other legal or equitable process, shall be void.
Section 12

Administration

(a)    Administrative Committee. The Plan will be administered by a Committee (the “Committee”) composed of one or

more individuals appointed by the Board of Directors to serve at its pleasure and without compensation. The members of the

Committee shall be the named fiduciaries with authority to control and manage the operation and administration of the Plan.

Members of the Committee need not be Employees or Participants. Any member of the Committee may resign by giving notice, in

writing, to the Board of Directors.

(b)    Committee Action. Committee action will be by vote of a majority of the members of the Committee at a meeting or

by unanimous written consent without a meeting. Minutes of each Committee meeting shall be kept.

(c)    Powers and Duties of the Committee. The Committee shall have the full and exclusive discretion to interpret and

administer the Plan, to make such rules, regulations, computations, interpretations and decisions, and shall maintain such records and

accounts as may be necessary to administer the Plan in a nondiscriminatory manner for the exclusive benefit of the Participants (and

their Beneficiaries), pursuant to the applicable requirements of the Code and ERISA, including without limitation the following:
(1)    resolving all questions relating to the eligibility of Employees to become Participants;

(2)    determining the appropriate allocations to Participants’ Accounts pursuant to Section 6;

(3)    determining the amount of benefits payable to a Participant (or Beneficiary), and the time and manner in which
such benefits are to be paid;
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(4)    authorizing and directing all disbursements of Trust Assets by the Trustee;

(5)    establishing procedures in accordance with Section 414(p) of the Code to determine the qualified status of
domestic relations orders and to administer distributions under such qualified orders;

(6)    employing investment advisers, accountants, legal counsel and other agents to assist in the performance of its
duties under the Plan;

(7)    selecting and engaging a third party administrator to assist in the administration of the Plan;

(8)    construing and interpreting the Plan and the Trust Agreement and adopting rules for administration of the Plan
that are consistent with the terms of the Plan documents and of ERISA and the Code;

(9)    compiling and maintaining all records it determines to be necessary, appropriate or convenient in connection
with the administration of the Plan;

(10)    establishing a funding policy and method for investing the Trust Assets in a manner that is consistent with the
objectives of the Plan and the requirements of ERISA; and

(11)    directing the Trustee with regard to all matters which require such directions under the Plan and Trust
Agreement and viewing the performance of the Trustee with respect to the Trustee’s administrative duties,
responsibilities and obligations under the Plan and the Trust Agreement.

(d)    Performance of Duties. The Committee shall perform its duties under the Plan and the Trust Agreement solely in the

interests of the Participants (and their Beneficiaries). Any discretion granted to the Committee under any of the provisions of the

Plan or the Trust Agreement shall be exercised only in accordance with rules and policies established by the Committee which shall

be applicable on a nondiscriminatory basis. The Committee shall have sole and exclusive authority to construe, interpret and apply

the terms of the Plan and Trust Agreement. All actions, interpretations and decisions of the Committee under this Section 12 shall be

conclusive and binding on all persons, and shall be given the maximum possible deference permitted by law.
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(e)    Delegation of Fiduciary Responsibility. The Committee may allocate its fiduciary responsibilities among its members

and may delegate to any other persons or organizations (including the Trustee or a TPA) any of its rights, powers, duties and

responsibilities with respect to the operation and administration of the Plan that are permitted to be so delegated under ERISA.

(f)    Bonding, Insurance and Indemnity. Lowe’s shall secure fidelity bonding, as required under Section 412 of ERISA.

Lowe’s hereby agrees to indemnify each member of the Committee (to the extent permitted by law) against any personal liability or

expense resulting from his service on the Committee, except such liability or expense as may result from his own willful

misconduct.

(g)    Notices, Statements and Reports. Lowe’s shall be the Plan Administrator under Section 414(g) of the Code and under

Section 3(16)(A) of ERISA for purposes of the reporting and disclosure requirements of ERISA and the Code. The Committee shall

assist the Company, as requested, in complying with such reporting and disclosure requirements. The Committee shall be the

designated agent of the Plan for the service of legal process.
Section 13

Claims Procedure

Distribution of Capital Accumulations under the Plan will normally be made without Participants’ (or Beneficiaries’) having

to file claims for benefits (except as provided in Section 10). However, a Participant (or Beneficiary) who does not receive a

distribution to which he believes he is entitled may present a claim to the Committee for any unpaid benefits. All questions and

claims regarding benefits under the Plan shall be acted upon by the Committee.

Each Participant (or Beneficiary) who wishes to file a claim for benefits with the Committee shall do so in writing, addressed

to the Committee or to Lowe’s. If the claim for

40



benefits is wholly or partially denied, the Committee shall notify the Participant (or Beneficiary) in writing of such denial of benefits

within 90 days (or 180 days if special circumstances require an extension of time and the Participant is so notified) after the

Committee initially received the benefit claim.

Any notice of a denial of benefits shall advise the Participant (or Beneficiary) of:
(a)    the specific reasons for the denial;

(b)    the specific provisions of the Plan on which the denial is based;

(c)    any additional material or information necessary for the Participant (or Beneficiary) to perfect his claim and an
explanation of why such material or information is necessary;

(d)    the steps which the Participant (or Beneficiary) must take to have his claim for benefits reviewed; and

(e)    a statement of the Participant’s right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
decision upon review.

Each Participant (or Beneficiary) whose claim for benefits has been denied shall have the opportunity to file a written request

for a full and fair review of his claim by the Committee, to review all documents pertinent to his claim and to submit a written

statement regarding issues relative to his claim. Such written request for review of his claim must be filed by the Participant (or

Beneficiary) within 60 days after receipt of written notification of the denial of his claim.

The decision of the Committee will be made within 60 days after receipt of the request for review and shall be communicated

in writing to the claimant. Such written notice shall set forth the specific reasons and specific Plan provisions on which the

Committee based its decision. If there are special circumstances (such as the need to hold a hearing) which require an extension of

time for completing the review, the Committee’s decision shall be rendered not later than 120 days after receipt of the request for

review.
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All notices by the Committee denying a claim for benefits, and all decisions on requests for a review of the denial of a claim

for benefits, shall be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the Participants (or Beneficiary) filing the claim or

requesting the review.
Section 14
Guaranties

All Capital Accumulations will be paid only from the Trust Assets. Lowe’s, the Trustee or the Committee shall not have any

duty or liability to furnish the Trust with any funds, securities or other assets, except as expressly provided in the Plan.

The adoption and maintenance of the Plan shall not be deemed to constitute a contract of employment or otherwise between

Lowe’s and any Employee, or to be a consideration for, or an inducement or condition of, any employment. Nothing contained in

this Plan shall be deemed to give an Employee the right to be retained in the Service of Lowe’s or to interfere with the right of

Lowe’s to discharge, with or without cause, any Employee at any time.
Section 15

Future of the Plan

As future conditions cannot be foreseen, Lowe’s reserves the right to amend or terminate this Plan (in whole or in part) and

the Trust Agreement at any time, by action of the Board of Directors or by the Committee to the extent provided in this Section.

Neither amendment nor termination of the Plan shall retroactively reduce the vested rights of Participants nor permit any part of the

Trust Assets to be diverted or used for any purpose other than for the exclusive benefit of the Participants (and their Beneficiaries).

Lowe’s specifically reserves the right to amend the Plan and the Trust Agreement retroactively, by action of the Board of

Directors or the Committee, in order to satisfy the requirements of ERISA and Sections 401(a), 401(k) and 401(m) of the Code.
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If the Plan is terminated (or partially terminated), participation of all Participants affected by the termination will end. A

complete discontinuance of Contributions shall be deemed to be a termination of the Plan for this purpose. After termination of the

Plan, the Trust will be maintained until the Capital Accumulations of all Participants have been distributed. Capital Accumulations

may be distributed following termination of the Plan or distributions may be deferred as provided in Section 9, as the Committee

shall determine.

In the event of the merger or consolidation of this Plan with another plan, or the transfer of Trust Assets (or liabilities) to

another plan, the Account balances of each Participant immediately after such merger, consolidation or transfer must be at least as

great as immediately before such merger, consolidation or transfer (as if the Plan had then terminated).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may amend the Plan without approval of the Board of Directors, provided that

the Committee determines in good faith that such amendment (i) will not result in a significant cost increase to Lowe’s; (ii) will not

result in the issuance of Lowe’s Stock; and (iii) is not limited in impact to only officers of Lowe’s.
Section 16

“Top-Heavy” Contingency Provisions

(a)    General. The provisions of this Section 16 are included in the Plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(10)(B)(ii) of the Code

and shall become applicable only if the Plan becomes a “top-heavy plan” under Section 416(g) of the Code for any Plan Year.

(b)    Top-Heavy Plan. The determination as to whether the Plan becomes “top-heavy” for any such Plan Year shall be made

as of the Anniversary Date of the immediately preceding Plan Year. The Plan shall be “top-heavy” only if the total Account balances

for “key employees” as of such determination date exceed 60% of the total Account balances for all Participants. For such purpose,

Account balances shall be computed and adjusted pursuant to
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Section 416(g) of the Code. “Key employee” means any Participant or former Participant (including deceased Participants) who at

any time during the Plan Year that includes the determination date was an officer of the Company having annual compensation

greater than $215,000 (as adjusted after 2023 under Section 416(i)(1) of the Code), a five-percent owner of the Company, or a one-

percent owner of the Company having annual compensation of more than $150,000. For this purpose, “annual compensation” means

compensation within the meaning of Section 415(c)(3) of the Code. The determination of who is a key employee will be made in

accordance with Section 416(i) of the Code and applicable regulations and other guidance of general applicability issued thereunder.

(c)    Minimum Top-Heavy Contributions. For any Plan Year in which the Plan is “top-heavy,” each Participant who is an

employee on the Anniversary Date (and who is not a “key employee”) shall receive a minimum aggregate allocation of contributions

and forfeitures under the Plan which is at least equal to the lesser of:
(1)    3% of his Statutory Compensation; or

(2)    the same percentage of his Statutory Compensation as the allocation to the “key employee” for whom the
percentage is the highest for that Plan Year.

(d)    Matching Contributions. Matching contributions shall be taken into account for purposes of satisfying the minimum

contribution requirements of the Plan and Section 416(c)(2) of the Code. Matching contributions that are used to satisfy the

minimum contribution requirements shall be treated as matching contributions for purposes of the actual contribution percentage test

and other requirements of Section 401(m) of the Code.

(e)    Determination of Account Balances. For purposes of determining the Account balances of Participants as of the

Anniversary Date, Account balances of a Participant shall be increased by distributions made with respect to the Participant under

the Plan and any other plan
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aggregated with the Plan under Section 416(g)(2) of the Code during the one-year period ending on the Anniversary Date. The

preceding sentence shall also apply to distributions under a terminated plan, had it not been terminated, if it would have been

aggregated with the Plan under Section 416(g)(2)(A)(i) of the Code. In the case of distribution made for a reason other than

severance from employment, death or disability, this provision shall be applied by substituting “five-year period” for “one-year

period.” The Accounts of any individual who has not performed services for the Company during the one-year period ending on the

Anniversary Date shall not be taken into account.
Section 17

Minimum Required Distributions

(a)    General Rules.

(1)    Precedence. The requirements of this Section 17 will take precedence over any inconsistent provisions of the

Plan.

(2)    Requirements of Treasury Regulations Incorporated. All distributions required under this Section 17 will be

determined and made in accordance with the Treasury regulations under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code.

(b)    Time and Manner of Distributions.

(1)    Required Beginning Date. The Participant’s entire Capital Accumulation will be distributed to the Participant by

no later than his Required Beginning Date.

(2)    Form of Distribution. All distributions will be made in the form of lump sum payments.
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(c)    Required Minimum Distribution During the Participant’s Lifetime.

(1)    Amount of Required Minimum Distribution for Each Distribution Calendar Year. During the Participant’s

lifetime, the minimum amount that will be distributed for each Distribution Calendar Year is the total amount

of the Participant’s Capital Accumulation.

(2)    Lifetime Required Minimum Distributions Continue Through Year of Participant’s Death. Required minimum

distributions will be determined under this Section 17(c) beginning with the first Distribution Calendar Year

and up to and including the Distribution Calendar Year that includes the Participant’s date of death.

(d)    Required Minimum Distributions After the Participant’s Death.

(1)    Death On or After the Date Distributions Begin. The minimum amount that will be distributed for each

Distribution Calendar Year after the year of the Participant’s death is the total amount of the Participant’s

Capital Accumulation.

(2)    Death Before the Date Distributions Begin. The distribution of the Participant’s entire Capital Accumulation will

be completed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant’s death.

(e)    Definitions.

(1)    Distribution Calendar Year. A calendar year for which a minimum distribution is required. For distributions

beginning before the Participant’s death, the first Distribution Calendar Year is the calendar
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year immediately preceding the calendar year that contains the Participant’s Required Beginning Date. For

distributions beginning after the Participant’s death, the first Distribution Calendar Year is the calendar year in

which distributions are required to begin pursuant to Section 17(d). The required minimum distribution for the

Participant’s first Distribution Calendar Year will be made on or before the Participant’s Required Beginning

Date. The required minimum distribution for other Distribution Calendar Years, including the required

minimum distribution for the Distribution Calendar Year in which the Participant’s Required Beginning Date

occurs, will be made on or before December 31 of that Distribution Calendar Year.

(2)    Participant’s Account Balance. The balance in the Participant’s Accounts as of the last Valuation Date in the

calendar year immediately preceding the Distribution Calendar Year (the “Valuation Calendar Year”)

increased by the amount of any contributions made and allocated or forfeitures allocated to the Accounts as of

dates in the Valuation Calendar Year after the Valuation Date and decreased by distributions made in the

Valuation Calendar Year after the Valuation Date.

(3)    Required Beginning Date. The latest distribution date specified in Section 9(c) of the Plan.
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Section 18
Governing Law

The provisions of this Plan shall be construed, administered and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of North

Carolina, to the extent such laws are not preempted by ERISA.
Section 19

Merger of Plans

In the event a plan (the “Merged Plan”) is merged into the Plan, each participant or beneficiary in the Merged Plan as of the

date immediately before the merger shall be entitled to receive a benefit under the Plan immediately after the merger (if the Plan then

terminated) that is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive under the Merged Plan as of the date

immediately before the merger (had that plan then terminated). Each Participant or Beneficiary in the Plan as of the date

immediately before the merger shall be entitled to receive a benefit under the Plan immediately after the merger (if the Plan then

terminated) that is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive immediately before the merger (had the

Plan then terminated).

The participants’ accounts payable under the Merged Plan shall, to the extent required by law, be provided under the Plan

from and after the date of merger under the same terms and conditions, in the same amount, form and manner, and at the same time

and frequency as under the Merged Plan, as in effect on the day prior to the date of merger. All forms of benefit payments available

to participants and beneficiaries under the Merged Plan, as in effect on the date of merger shall continue to be available, to the extent

required by law, under the Plan for such participants and beneficiaries from and after the merger with respect to their accounts under

the Merged Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the forms of distribution available under the Merged Plan that are not otherwise

available under the Plan shall be eliminated, to the extent
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permitted by law. Such forms of distribution shall be eliminated in accordance with the requirements of (and only to the extent

permitted under) Section 411(d)(6) of the Code and any regulations thereunder.

This Section 19 shall not create any benefit or entitlement for any person where none existed under the terms of the Plan or

the Merged Plan in effect prior to the merger.

(a)    Merger of the Alacrity Renovation Services, LLC 401(k) Plan.

(1)    Effective February 1, 2018 (or such other date established by Lowe’s), the Alacrity Renovation Services, LLC

401(k) (the “Alacrity Plan”) is merged with and made a part of the Plan. The Alacrity Plan shall thereafter

cease to exist as a separate plan but shall continue as part of the Plan from and after the date of merger. The

assets of the Alacrity Plan shall become assets of, and the liabilities of the such plan shall be assumed by (and

combined with the liabilities of), the Plan as of the date of merger.

(2)    An Employee’s prior service with Alacrity Renovation Services, LLC shall be counted, to the extent required by

law, for purposes of participation under the Plan, and such Employee’s Service under the Plan shall not be less

than his years of service under the Alacrity Plan as of the date of merger. Any Employee who was eligible to

participate in the Alacrity Plan on or before January 31, 2018 shall be immediately eligible to participate in the

Plan and make Salary Deferral Contributions and receive Company Matching Contributions as of the date of

merger, regardless of the eligibility requirements under Sections 3(a)(2) and 3(b)(2) of the Plan.

(3)    All nonvested participant accounts under the Alacrity Plan shall automatically become 100% vested as of the

date of merger.
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(4)    All applicable beneficiary designations, spousal consents, and other elections (other than investment elections)

and designations made by participants or others under the Alacrity Plan shall continue in full force and effect

from and after the date of merger unless and until subsequently changed in accordance with the terms of the

Plan. Investment elections shall remain in effect until changed in accordance with the terms of the Alacrity

Plan or the Plan, or as otherwise directed by the Lowe’s.

(5)    Any life insurance contracts held under the Alacrity Plan shall be distributed or terminated prior to the date of

merger and not carried over to the Plan.

(b)    Merger of the Maintenance Supply Headquarters, LP 401(k) Plan.

(1)    Effective as of December 31, 2019 (or such other date established by Lowe’s, the “Merger Date”), the

Maintenance Supply Headquarters, LP 401(k) Plan (the “MSH Plan”) is merged with and made a part of the

Plan. In such regard, and as a part of the merger, on the Plan Merger Date the trust maintained for the MSH

Plan shall become a part of the trust maintained for the Plan, and the transferred assets of the MSH Plan shall

thereupon become assets of the Plan. Upon consummation of the merger on the Merger Date and thereafter (a)

the Plan shall be the successor in interest to, and shall have and assume all liabilities of, the MSH Plan, (b) no

further contributions shall be made to, and no further benefits shall accrue under, the MSH Plan for any period

after the Merger Date and (c) all substantive provisions of the Plan (as amended from time to time) shall
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apply to the former MSH Plan participants. From and after the Merger Date, the named fiduciaries under the

Plan shall have the authority to control and manage the operation of the merged plans and the trust maintained

thereunder within their designated areas of responsibility, all as provided in the Plan. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, the physical transfer of the custody of the assets of the MSH Plan transferred pursuant to this

paragraph will be made as soon as administratively practicable on or following the Merger Date.

(2)    An Employee’s prior service with (A) Maintenance Supply Headquarters, LP, (B) MSH, LLC, (C) Central

Wholesalers, Inc., or (D) Central Wholesalers, LLC shall be counted, to the extent required by law, for

purposes of participation under the Plan, and such Employee’s Service under the Plan shall not be less than his

years of service under the MSH Plan as of the Merger Date. Any Employee who was eligible to participate in

the MSH Plan on or before December 31, 2019 shall be immediately eligible to participate in the Plan and

make Salary Deferral Contributions and receive Company Matching Contributions as of January 1, 2020,

regardless of the eligibility requirements under Sections 3(a)(3) and 3(b)(3) of the Plan.

(3)    All nonvested participant accounts under the MSH Plan, including accounts of terminated employees, shall

automatically become 100% vested as of the Merger Date.
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(4)    Following the Merger Date, (A) a Participant may withdraw all or any amount from the Participant’s Rollover

Account in the MSH Plan that is transferred to a Rollover Account in the Plan, and earnings on such amount

after the Merger Date, at any time, and (B) a Participant may withdraw all or any amount from the

Participant’s vested accounts under the MSH Plan that are transferred to accounts in the Plan, and earnings on

such amounts after the Merger Date, upon becoming Disabled. Any withdrawals pursuant to this paragraph

must be made in accordance with procedures established by the Committee.

(5)    All applicable beneficiary designations, spousal consents, and other elections (other than investment elections)

and designations made by participants or others under the MSH Plan shall continue in full force and effect

from and after the Merger Date unless and until subsequently changed in accordance with the terms of the

Plan. Investment elections shall remain in effect until changed in accordance with the terms of the MSH Plan

or the Plan, or as otherwise directed by Lowe’s.
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Section 20
Execution

To record this statement and restatement of the Plan, Lowe’s has caused this document to be executed by its duly authorized

officer this _27th__ day of ____April___, 2023.

LOWE’S COMPANIES, INC.

By:  /s/ David R. Green


